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The Group attained a turnover of HK$429.5 million from its continuing
operations for the year ended 31 December 2012, represented an increase
of 9.8% as compared to that of HK$391.0 million in 2011. Gross profits
for the year increased by 83.7% to HK$110.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: HK$60.3 million). Loss for the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2012 was HK$149.0 million (2011: HK$219.3 million).
Loss for the year was arrived at after charging administrative expenses of
HK$163.0 million (2011: HK$183.1 million); finance costs of HK$18.6 million
(2011: HK$23.9 million); impairment loss recognised in respect of other
intangible assets arising from certain under-performed hotel lease contracts
of HK$34.1 million (2011: HK$10.1 million); impairment loss recognised in
respect of property, plant and equipment of HK$44.2 million (2011: HK$31.2
million) and loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment of HK$26.3
million (2011: HK$24.6 million); and after crediting an increase in fair value of
investment properties of HK$10.0 million (2011: HK$13.5 million) and gain

on disposal of available-for-sale investment of HK$17.0 million (2011: Nil).
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Following the soft opening of the Rosedale Hotel Kowloon in July 2012,
the business hotel network of the Group was further comprehended. As at
31 December 2012, the hotel operations of the Group comprised the four
“Rosedale” branded 4-star rated hotels, the Times Plaza Hotel, Shenyang,
the Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel and the Square Inn budget hotel chain.
Turnover increased by 9.8% to HK$429.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: HK$391.0 million) resulted from the increasing
average room rates and average occupancy rates. The strong Renminbi also
played an important role to this improving performance. The operating
margin of the Group was further improved subsequent to the surrender and
disposal of certain under-performed budget hotel leases during the year.
Segment loss for the reporting year was HK$137.9 million (2011: HK$163.5
million). Loss for the year was mainly attributable to the high depreciation
charge on the Group’s hotel properties and ancillary fixed assets; impairment
loss recognised on and loss on disposal of leasehold improvement in respect
of those under-performed budget hotel leases. The impairment was made
after considering the future discounted cash flows and in view of the fierce

competition of budget hotel market and the weakening economy in the PRC.

Profits from trading of securities for the year ended 31 December 2012 was
HK$1.8 million (2011: loss of HK$9.5 million).

On 13 January 2012, the Group entered into a conditional sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party (the “Vendor”). Pursuant to the
agreement, the Vendor agreed to sell and the Group agreed to purchase
14,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.02 each in the capital of Apex Quality
Group Limited (“Apex”), representing approximately 5.05% of the issued
share capital of Apex at a total cash consideration of HK$62,000,000.
Following the completion, the Company’s equity interest in Apex increased
to approximately 88.2% and Apex remains as an indirect non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The said agreement was completed in January

2012.
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On 2 February 2012, the Company entered into a conditional agreement
with C-Travel International Limited (“C-Travel”) and pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to sell and C-Travel conditionally agreed to
purchase the remaining 10% equity interest in the issued share capital of
HKWOT (BVI) Limited, at a consideration of US$9.44 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$73.6 million). The consideration was paid by C-Travel as
to US$9.18 million (equivalent to approximately HK$71.6 million) by way of
cash at completion and as to the balance of US$0.26 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2 million) by way of cash on the first anniversary of the

completion date. The said agreement was completed in February 2012.

On 1 February 2012, Eagle Spirit Holdings Limited (“Eagle Spirit”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a conditional share
sale agreement (the “Agreement”) with an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”), amongst other things, for the disposal of the entire equity
interest (the “Sale Share”) in and the shareholder’s loan (the “Sale Loan”) to
More Star Limited (“More Star”) for a total consideration of approximately
HK$1,317,708,000 (subject to adjustment). The disposal of the Sale Share
and the Sale Loan constituted a very substantial disposal whereas the
exercise of the put option by the Purchaser constituted a very substantial
acquisition for the Company under the Listing Rules. The Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder were therefore subject to the
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder were approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the special general meeting convened in
April 2012. On 29 June 2012, the Purchaser informed the Company that the
condition precedent to completion in relation to the initial public offering of
the units in the stapled group would not be satisfied on or before 30 June
2012. Accordingly, the Agreement lapsed on 30 June 2012 and was of no
further effect and no party shall have any claim against other party(ies) by

reason thereof.
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On 24 October 2012, Enjoy Media Holdings Limited (“Enjoy”), a subsidiary
of the Group entered into a memorandum of understanding (the “MOU")
with an independent third party (the “Intended Purchaser”) in relation to the
possible disposal of the entire issued share capital of the Square Inn Hotel
Management Limited (the “Target”), at a consideration of HK$52,000,000.
If the parties fail to sign a formal agreement on or before 31 January 2013
(the “Signing Date"”) for whatever reason, the MOU shall lapse automatically.
The Target is principally engaged in the holding of a lease contract for the
operation of a three-star hotel in Macau (the “Hotel”). The Hotel has not
yet been in operation pending the grant of a hotel licence by the relevant
government authority. On 25 January 2013, Enjoy and the Intended
Purchaser entered into a supplemental memorandum of understanding,
pursuant to which the parties agreed that, amongst other things, the Signing
Date be extended to a date falling on or before 30 April 2013 or such later
date as may be agreed by the parties in writing. No formal agreement has

been entered into by the parties up to the date of this annual report.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's total borrowings were as

follows:
Loan from a related company —REABERARIZER
Borrowings — amount due within one year BE-—FNEHFIE

Borrowings — amount due after one year
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Borrowings of approximately HK$8.1 million bear interest at a fixed rate of
10% per annum. All other borrowings bear floating interest rates. During the
year, the Group repaid loans of approximately HK$69.7 million and obtained
a new loan facility of HK$250 million at an interest rate of the higher of
HIBOR plus 2.5% per annum or 3% per annum and is repayable in two
instalments in December 2015 and 2017 to finance the normal operation
of the Company. Bank deposits of approximately HK$15.0 million and
properties of approximately HK$1,425.4 million were pledged as securities

for bank borrowings as at 31 December 2012.

The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2012, expressed as a percentage of total
borrowings to equity attributable to owners of the Company, was 54.3%

(2011: 38.9%).

At 31 December 2012, certain assets of the Group at net book value of
HK$1,440.4 million (2011: HK$1,337.0 million) were pledged to banks and

financial institutions for credit facilities.

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31

December 2012 (2011: Nil).
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The majority of the Group's assets and liabilities and business transactions
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. During the year
ended 31 December 2012, the Group has not entered into any hedging
arrangements. However, the management will continue to monitor closely
its foreign currency exposure and requirements and to arrange for hedging

facilities when necessary.

At 31 December 2012, the Group has 1,371 employees of which 1,030
employees were stationing in the PRC. Competitive remuneration packages
are structured to commensurate with the responsibilities, qualifications,
experience and performance of individual employee. The Group also
provided training programs, provident fund scheme and medical insurance

for its employees.

The World Economic Outlook projections imply that global growth will
strengthen gradually through 2013, averaging 3.5 percent on an annual
basis, a moderate uptick from 3.2 percent in 2012. A further strengthening
to 4.1 percent is projected for 2014, assuming recovery takes a firm hold in
the euro area economy. However, downside risks remain significant, including
renewed setbacks in the euro area and risks of excessive near-term fiscal

consolidation in the United States.

In the PRC, it is generally expected the politics and economic environment will
move into a new era following the successful handover of the sovereignty to
the new national leaders after the twelfth National People’s Congress held in

March 2013.
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The Group, with years of successful experience in the PRC and domestic
hospitality business, has already got its place in this flourishing market. With
the newly opened Rosedale Hotel Kowloon, the Group's four-star rated
business hotel chain is further comprehended with over 2,000 guests rooms
in operations. The Group has already received a consent from the Beijing
Municipal Commission of Urban Planning for the extension of Rosedale
Hotel Beijing. The Group has a preliminary concept to increase its GFA by
25,000 square meters with the addition of approximately 250 guest rooms,
a swimming pool and other ancillary facilities at the standard of a 5-star
rated hotel. Facing severe competition from both local and international
budget hotel brands, the Group has surrendered and/or disposed of certain
non-performed hotel leases during 2012. The Group shall further review its
business strategy on its budget hotel business and to focus on retaining those
hotels located in Guangdong Province and with good business potentials that

would provide positive contribution to the Group in the coming years.

In the future, the Group shall continue to put resources to strengthen its
branding and position in the hospitality industry and to explore further quality

investment opportunities to enhance shareholders’ wealth.

BFE L F RN B RN REITEZRINE
B AEEEREEED TS RIE—FA-
BEENEBBLESTRAR ASENERE
HAKBEEARE &8 2 TR E2082,000
M- AEEEEELETREZEEREEL
RHBEERHZARE - AEENL BB
HB@Z M IAIS 125,000 75 K + ATHGEE 49250
IE 5 « b7 7k ot B EAth B 8 2% e (50088 & i B
T AROT S5 AR AE o T 369 7 b, J B8 R 4 7 B 07 i
M2 HAUBF AEEER_T——FHE
E/RHEETRAMBZBEHE -A&H
T — P RET S ERE S 15 2 45 & RS -
WEPKEMNRERERN  BXBERENE
BZBEE AAEEARBEFEREEER-

o

AR - AN B AT ER B R dn g &
REBOTEZTBML ANEELBRERE
WEURFBRRYE -



Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, aged 59, is the Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Cheung was appointed as a Director of the Company in October 2003. He
is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company and a
director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung graduated from
the University of London with a Bachelor of Arts degree and has over 35 years
of experience in real estate development, property investment and corporate
finance. He has worked in key executive positions in various leading property
development companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung is the chairman and an
executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited, the shares of which are
listed in Hong Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director of
International Entertainment Corporation and Future Bright Holdings Limited,

both of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, aged 47, has been the Managing Director of the
Company since June 2009. She is also the chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. She joined
the Company in May 2002. Ms. Chan has over 24 years’ experience in
auditing, accounting and finance in both international accounting firms and
listed companies. She is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in Australia, a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and also a practicing member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ms. Chan is an executive director of China Strategic
Holdings Limited and an independent non-executive director of Trasy Gold
Ex Limited, both of which are listed companies in Hong Kong. She is also the
deputy chairman of China Enterprises Limited, a substantial shareholder of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, and the shares of which are traded on the OTC Securities Market
in the United States of America. Ms. Chan is also a director of MRI Holdings
Limited (“MRI") whose shares were previously listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange. The recommendation by the directors of MRI to return
the assets to its shareholders by way of members’ voluntary liquidation was

approved by its shareholders on 29 April 2010.

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis, aged 62, has been an Executive Director
of the Company since April 2002. He is a well-known actor, master of
ceremonies, and horseracing and soccer commentator. Mr. Chan has over 32

years' experience in the entertainment and film industry in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, aged 64, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since December 2002 and is also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee of
the Company. He was a marketing manager in an international company
engaging in the design of business administration system. Mr. Kwok has
been in the insurance and investment business for over 30 years, principally
in the senior managerial position leading a sizable sales team. He is also an
independent non-executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited and

Hanny Holdings Limited, both of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert, aged 51, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since March 2007 and is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Mr. Poon graduated from the University of Bath,
United Kingdom with a Master of Science degree in Business Administration.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the CPA Australia. He is also an independent non-executive

director of Hanny Holdings Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong.

Mr. Sin Chi Fai, aged 53, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company since January 2008 and is also a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Sin is a director and a shareholder of a
Singapore company engaged in the distribution of data storage media and
computer related products in Asian countries. He obtained a diploma in
Banking from The Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) and is a member of Singapore Institute of Directors.
Mr. Sin has over 16 years' experience in banking field and has over 16 years'
sales and marketing experience in information technology industries. He is
also an independent non-executive director of Hanny Holdings Limited, a
listed company in Hong Kong, and China Enterprises Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance, and the shares of which are traded on the OTC

Securities Market in the United States of America.
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Mr. Lai Tsz Wah, aged 49, has been the Group Financial Controller of
the Company since June 2009 and is a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. He joined the Company in March 1998 and has years
of experience in auditing, accounting and finance in both international
accounting firms and listed companies. Mr. Lai is also the chief executive
officer and an executive director of Qin Jia Yuan Media Services Company
Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong. Mr. Lai holds a Master degree
of Business Administration. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Law Sau Lai, aged 45, has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since August 2009. Ms. Law is an associate of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators. She has extensive experience in company secretarial

practice.

Mr. Ng Chack Yan, aged 62, joined Rosedale Hotel Management Limited in
November 2002 and was appointed as the Assistant General Manager since
April 2003. Mr. Ng holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration and
a master’s degree in accounting. He has over 25 years of experience in the
hotel industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng held a number of executive
positions in various hotels of the renowned multinational hotel chains in the

PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore and Indonesia.

Mr. Cheng Chun Chau, aged 47, participated in the foundation of Rosedale
on the Park (“Rosedale-HK"”) in 2000. Mr. Cheng is currently the General
Manager of Rosedale-HK and Rosedale Hotel Kowloon. During the period
from August 2008 to May 2011, he was also the General Manager of
Rosedale Hotel & Suites, Guangzhou. Mr. Cheng holds a master’s degree
in strategic hospitality management and is a member of the Institute of
Hospitality, UK and Academic Consultant in Hospitality Management of
Unity Learning Institute Hong Kong. He has over 28 years of experience and
knowledge in managing hotels and projects in both Hong Kong and the PRC.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheng held a number of executive positions

in various hotels in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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Mr. Lucas Chanter, aged 41, joined Rosedale Hotel Management Limited
in March 2010 and was appointed as the Director of Business Development
since September 2010. Mr. Chanter holds a diploma of hospitality
management. He has over 22 years of experience as a hotelier. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Chanter held a number of executive positions in various hotels

and resorts in Australia, Fiji, the Caribbean and Thailand.

Mr. Zhou Jian Hua, aged 50, has been a director of Square Inn Budget
Hotels since September 2010. He is also a director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou was a consultant to
various travel agents in China. Mr. Zhou was the General Manager of &
BRI A Mz BB R7T 4L (Guangdong Southern Airline International Travel
Company), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Southern Airlines Company
Limited, during the period from March 1998 to July 2005. Mr. Zhou holds a

bachelor’s degree in history from Jinan University.
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The Company is committed to achieving high standard of corporate
governance which is crucial to the development of the Company and can
safeguard the interests of the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”).
In the opinion of the Board, the Company has applied the principles of
and complied with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) as well as the
Corporate Governance Code (effective from 1 April 2012) (collectively the
“Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
during the year ended 31 December 2012 except for Code Provisions A.1.1
and A4.1.

The Company is principally engaged in the sector of hotel investments and
management in Hong Kong and in the PRC. Our corporate objective is to
create and enhance value for our shareholders. To achieve this corporate
objective, our business strategies are to maintain long term growth and the
profitability of the Company by developing and investing in quality hotels
in decent locations in Hong Kong and in the PRC. Notwithstanding that the
Company shall strive to further comprehend its four-star rated business hotel
network, it shall explore further opportunities in the hospitality sector. We are
committed to maintain a solid and healthy financial status with a solid cash
balance and an efficient debt/equity ratio that will enable us to finance our

existing operations and proceed with potential investments.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) currently comprises
six directors including three executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors whose biographical details are set out in the “Directors
Profile” section of this annual report. The Board is principally accountable
to the Shareholders and responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) including overseeing
the Group’s businesses, formulating corporate strategies, establishing
strategic directions, monitoring operating and financial performance, setting
objectives and business development plans, and monitoring the performance

of the senior management.
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The Board has delegated all operational decisions to the executive directors
of the Company led by the Managing Director. The Board has also delegated
certain authorities to the senior management of the Company for the day-to-

day running of the Group's operation.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group and holds additional board meetings as
and when required. Resolutions in writing may be passed by the Board in lieu

of a meeting pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company.

Under Code Provision A.1.1, the board should meet regularly and board
meetings should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. During the year, two (2) regular Board meetings and three (3)
irregular Board meetings were held. In addition, four (4) resolutions in writing

were passed by the Board.

Although the Board meetings held during the year were not convened
on a quarterly basis, the Board considered that sufficient meetings had
been held as business operations were under the management and the
supervision of the executive directors of the Company. In addition, the Board
has established the audit committee, the remuneration committee, the
nomination committee and the corporate governance committee to oversee

particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
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The attendance of each director of the Company at the full board meetings

and general meetings held in 2012 is as follows:

Directors

=}

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Chairman) SROBEGEA (E£/FE)

Ms. Chan Ling, Eva (Managing Director) PRI &+ (EF44EHE)
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis BREF LA

Independent Non-executive Directors BIUEHTES

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva EEE
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 7 B B S A
Mr. Sin Chi Fai Vi Sita s

Under Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director, who performs the
function of chief executive officer, are held by Mr. Cheung Hon Kit and Ms.
Chan Ling, Eva separately. The Chairman is responsible for the leadership
of the Board while the Managing Director is responsible for the operation
and performance of the Group. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company is clearly established

and set out in writing.

BEEN T _FHEINERESFEEEN
BRRAEZHEBRIAT :
Attendance
H R R
Annual Special
Board General General
Meetings Meeting Meeting
BE 5l

Exg BRRAE BRERAE

5/5 171 il
5/5 11 1”71
5/5 01 1”71
5/5 01 171
4/5 171 il
5/5 01 0/1

REBSFRIRNA2  EFETHER BAERE
FRD I TEHR—ARBHRE-TFEESR
IR (ZRINITHAAE) DRI RREREE
EREZIHE-TFRAEREESEE ME
FHREARAKBZEERKRB -ARAE
[FEERRZIEZHBED TEWMALE TIE
[EIEIEE



Under Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election. The current independent non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term. However,
all directors (including executive and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting in accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws of
the Company. As such, the Company considers that this is no less exacting

than that in the Code.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive directors as required under Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. On 22 March 2013, the Nomination Committee
held a meeting to assess the annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive directors. Taking into account
the independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the
Nomination Committee considered that all independent non-executive

directors remained independent.

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)

with written terms of reference in line with the Code.

The Audit Committee comprises three members who are all independent
non-executive directors. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Poon Kwok

Hing, Albert.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review the financial
information of the Company and to oversee the relationship with the
Company'’s auditor. It also assists the Board to oversee the financial reporting

system and internal control procedures.

During 2012, three (3) meetings of the Audit Committee were held with the

management of the Company and the Company’s auditor:

(1) to review and/or discuss financial reporting matters including the
annual results and interim results as well as the accounting policies and

practices which may affect the Group;
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(2)  to approve the terms of engagement of external auditors; and

(3) to review the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.

The members and attendance of the meetings of the Audit Committee are

as follows:

Members of Audit Committee Attendance
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 3/3
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 3/3
Mr. Sin Chi Fai 3/3

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference in line with the

Code.

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors and one executive director. The Remuneration Committee is chaired

by Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to consider and
recommend to the Board the Company's remuneration policy and structure
and to review and determine the remuneration and compensation packages

of the executive directors and senior management of the Company.

During 2012, the Remuneration Committee held one (1) meeting to review
the remuneration policy of the Company such as the proposed level of salary
increase for 2013, the fringe benefits to the employees of the Company
and the remuneration packages of the executive directors and senior
management of the Company. In addition, the Remuneration Committee
passed one (1) resolutions in writing regarding the payment of discretionary
bonus for the year of 2011 to the Managing Director and the senior

management of the Company.

(2) BUEINBZERED 2 B8 AR

() THEIARNEBEABPE IS Z KL

ERZEEZKERERESHRBANT !

BREZEEERE HERE
B o A 3/3
M= EE 3/3
HEESEAE 3/3

ARRCKIFHEES ([FMEEE]) A
RERSTRIRT B A S B i

HNRESEMEBLIFRNITES R —RUT
EEER -BRILERFHEREEERE-

FHEE G T ERERERNAESSER
ARBZFHFHBRRRE  ARgE REEAR
RAMITEERESREIRAE 2 FHBFSREE
(LER7 R

—E-CFR FHMEZEERRAARE ZH
MERERBITT —(WREH REEERE_F
—=FHEHBIERRE ARFBEZE
SMERMIRARRMTEERSREEABZH
Mgt FMEESBRB—(1)REER
FOMEEREFTALCERARASHREEA
BT ——F 7 MIEEL -



The members and attendance of the meeting of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

Members of Remuneration Committee

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva

Attendance

171
11
171

The directors of the Company are remunerated with reference to their

respective duties and responsibilities with the Company and prevailing

market conditions. During the year, no directors of the Company were

involved in deciding his or her own remuneration. Details of emoluments

of the directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 are

disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration of the members of

the senior management of the Company is within the following bands:

Up to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000

1,000,000/% 7T Lk
1,000,001/ 7T £ 1,500,000/% 7T 2
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The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) in March 2012 with written terms of reference in line with the

Code.

The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors and one executive director. The Nomination Committee is chaired

by Mr. Cheung Hon Kit.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
corporate strategy of the Company; to identify individuals suitably qualified
to become board member; to assess the independence of independent
non-executive directors; to review annually the contribution required
from a director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and
whether he/she is spending sufficient time performing them and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors. Before its establishment, the
Board is responsible for the appointment of directors according to the Bye-

Laws of the Company.

The nomination of directors will be taken into consideration of the nominee’s

qualification, ability and potential contributions to the Company.

No new directors were nominated for appointment during the year ended 31

December 2012.
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During 2012, the Nomination Committee held one (1) meeting to review the
structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and whether directors of the Company have spent sufficient

time in performing their responsibilities.

The members and attendance of the meeting of the Nomination Committee

are as follows:

Members of Nomination Committee Attendance
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit 11
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 11
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 11

The Company established a corporate governance committee (the
“Corporate Governance Committee”) in March 2012 with written terms of

reference in line with the Code.

The Corporate Governance Committee comprises two independent non-
executive directors and one executive director. The Corporate Governance

Committee is chaired by Ms. Chan Ling, Eva.

The main responsibilities of the Corporate Governance Committee are to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of directors and senior
management; to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and to review the
Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.
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During 2012, the Corporate Governance Committee held one (1) meeting
to review the Company’s practices on corporate governance and the
Company's practices in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
and to discuss the training and continuous professional development of

directors of the Company.

The members and attendance of the meeting of the Corporate Governance

Committee are as follows:

Members of Corporate

Governance Committee Attendance
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva 11
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert 11
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva 11

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which gives a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that
period. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2012, the directors of the Company have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that
are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a

going concern basis.

During the year, the auditor of the Company received approximately
HK$4,001,000 for audit services and approximately HK$2,649,000 for

interim review and other non-audit services.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting

responsibilities is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on page 40.
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During the year, the Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control procedures which include the
policies, procedures and monitoring system for safeguarding the interests
of the Shareholders and also the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function

and their training programmes and budget.

The Company acknowledges the importance of communicating with
Shareholders. A Shareholders’ communication policy was adopted in March

2012 pursuant to the Code.

Various channels of communication have been established for maintaining
communications with Shareholders including financial reports (interim and
annual reports), announcements, annual general meetings and other general
meetings that may be convened as well as other documents submitted to The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company's website is the primary means to provide information to
Shareholders. Information relating to the Company is available on the

Company's website at www.rhh.com.hk.

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings of the
Company or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on

their behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings.

The Company will use general meetings as a tool to effectively communicate
with Shareholders and provide Shareholders with the opportunity of asking

questions on any relevant matters.

Directors, appropriate management executives and external auditors will be
present at annual general meetings of the Company to answer Shareholders’

questions.
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Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited
at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
Other Shareholders’ enquiries can be sent by mail to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at 31/F, Paul Y.
Centre, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong or by email to
info@rhh.com.hk for the attention of Company Secretary who will direct the

enquiries to the Board for handling.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
Shareholder(s) holdings not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital
of the Company as at the date of the deposit of the requisition carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company may request the Board

to convene a special general meeting.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
for the attention of the Company Secretary and may consist of several

documents in like form, each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a special general
meeting by serving sufficient notice to all the Shareholders in accordance
with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules and the Bye-Laws of the

Company.
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In the event that the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
requisitionist concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a

special general meeting will not be convened as requested.

If the Board does not within twenty-one (21) days from the date of the
deposit of a valid requisition, proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date. A general meeting so convened by the requisitionists
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible as that in which

meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, (i) any
number of Shareholder representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the requisition
a right to vote at the general meeting to which the requisition relates; or (ii)
not less than one hundred (100) Shareholders, can submit a requisition in

writing to the Company:

(@) to give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice of next annual
general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be moved

and is intended to be moved at that meeting;

(b) to circulate the Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than one thousand
(1,000) words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed

resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.
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The written requisition must be signed by the requisitionists (may consist
of one or several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists) and deposited at the registered office of the Company at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the
attention of the Company Secretary with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet
the Company's relevant expenses and not less than six (6) weeks before the
annual general meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of resolution
or not less than one (1) week before the general meeting in case of any
other requisition. Provided that if an annual general meeting is called for a
date six (6) weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the copy
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have been

properly deposited for the purposes thereof.

The requisition will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the annual general meeting or circulating the statement for the

general meeting.

In the event that the requisition is not in order or the requisitionists concerned
have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses
for the said purpose, the requisitionists concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included in
the agenda for the annual general meeting or the statement will not be

circulated for the general meeting.

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as a director
of the Company, please refer to the procedures made available on the

Company's website at www.rhh.com.hk.
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According to Code Provision A.6.5 of the Code (effective on 1 April 2012),
all directors should participate in continuous professional development to

develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the year, the Company has delivered the latest version of “A Guide
on Directors’ Duties” published by the Hong Kong Companies Registry,
“Guidelines for Directors” and “Guide for Independent Non-executive
Directors” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors to all directors of
the Company, and encourages them to read such guides in order to acquaint
themselves with the general duties of directors and the required standard of
care, skill and diligence in the performance of their functions and exercise of

their powers as directors.

From time to time, directors of the Company are provided with written
materials on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. Directors are also
encouraged to attend the relevant training courses and seminars at the

Company's expenses.

According to the records received by the Company, all directors of the
Company (namely, Mr. Cheung Hon Kit, Ms. Chan Ling, Eva, Mr. Chan Pak
Cheung, Natalis, Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva, Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert and Mr.
Sin Chi Fai) have participated in continuous professional development during
the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012 by reading materials
provided by the Company as described above. Besides, Ms. Chan Ling,
Eva and Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert attended other seminars relating to
directors’ duties and accounting/financial/management or other professional

skills organised by professional bodies and/or independent auditors.

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its own code for dealing in securities of the Company by
the directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors
of the Company, the Company confirmed that all directors of the Company
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code

during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure to present
their annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31

December 2012.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal subsidiaries are

engaged in the business of hotel operation and trading of securities.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 42 and 43.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) has resolved not to recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
Nil).

A financial summary of the Group for the past five years is set out on page

158.

Particulars of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out

in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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In addition to the accumulated profits, under The Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), contributed surplus is also available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium

account.

In the opinion of the Directors, the reserves of the Company which were
available for distribution to the Shareholders at 31 December 2012 were

approximately HK$229,552,000 (2011: HK$340,969,000).

Details of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 32 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Details of movements during the year in property, plant and equipment of the

Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Particulars of the properties of the Group as at 31 December 2012 are set out

on pages 159 to 160 of this annual report.

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit (Chairman)
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva (Managing Director)
Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert
Mr. Sin Chi Fai

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Ms. Chan
Ling, Eva and Mr. Sin Chi Fai will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the

Company.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly

or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

JiE)

EER-_ZT——F+_A=+—BZWEF
BN ARFERFE1592160H ©

REARBERFEAH EF0T:

FEGRE (ZE)
BRIC L+ (EFAGHETE)
BRALEE

BRIEE
EEE A
SRR E

REBA QR 2 QAR FIFRMRERIS L+ K&
HEEBAEERRNERERFBF RS HERE
HRENFEERLBEERBET

BREECRRBFASLBRET ES:
NN RN 2 B ERY =N E NS ETR
AR —FARMNEE CEERBERIN M T A
RIEZRIBEH

BEFEARRNEEMMB R RN FERLELE
RRFREASHEFI L E2ANTHRERRER
EEBEEEAER -



As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) (a) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of

the Listing Rules were as follows:

Long position/
Short position
HR/ KR

Capacity/
Name of Director

EEEE 54 EmitE

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva
PELTE

Long position
HE BERERA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (a) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO; or (b) as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) which was
adopted by its Shareholders on 3 May 2002 and amended on 27 May 2005,
was valid and effective for a period of 10 years since the date of adoption

until 3 May 2012.

No options were granted, nor were there any options outstanding under the

Scheme during the period from 1 January 2012 to 3 May 2012.

Nature of interest

Beneficial owner
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The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
employees, executives or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(including executive and non-executive directors of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants, agents or advisers who will
contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries
as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the Company or such

subsidiaries.

Subject to the condition that the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time, the total
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme, when aggregated with any shares subject to any other schemes, is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue on the

date of approval and adoption of the Scheme.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 May 2005, an
ordinary resolution was passed to amend the Scheme so that the Scheme sets
out that when determining the “refreshed” 10% limit under the Scheme as
at the date of approval of the limit, options previously granted (i.e. before the
date of approval of the limit) under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in
accordance with the schemes or exercised options) would not be counted for

the purpose of calculating the limit as “refreshed”.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under
the Scheme and other share option scheme(s) of the Company to any
individual in aggregate in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without prior approval from the

Shareholders.
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Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or any Independent
Non-executive Director, or any of their respective associates (as defined in
Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules), would result in the number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted to such person in any 12-month period up to and including the date

of the grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares of

the Company on the date of grant in excess of HK$5 million,

such grant of options shall be subject to prior approval of the Shareholders
who are not connected persons of the Company as defined in the Listing

Rules.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days after the date of offer. The
consideration payable for the options is HK$1.00. Options may be exercised
at any time from the date of acceptance of the share options to such date
as determined by the Board but in any event not exceeding 10 years. The
exercise price is determined by the Directors and will not be less than the
highest of (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; (i) the closing price of the shares on

the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

No time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.
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Interests of the Directors, other than Independent Non-executive Directors,
in competing businesses as at 31 December 2012 required to be disclosed

pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

Name of Director

ESEH

Mr. Cheung Hon Kit

REASRE

Name of entity which
businesses are considered
to compete or likely to
compete with the
businesses of the Group

HEBRRRELERZ

EBRABFIURTRERIECERERE

ITC Properties Group Limited (“ITC
Properties”) and its subsidiaries

EEmEREERLOR ([EHFHME])

REMERE
China Development Limited
hrBERAR AT
Artnos Limited
) NG]
Co-Forward Development Ltd.
ERERARAA
Orient Centre Limited
REHRAF
Super Time Limited
REAR QA
Asia City Holdings Ltd.
DHEEBRRA
Supreme Best Ltd.
Supreme Best Ltd.

Orient Holdings Limited
RHEBEBRAA

Link Treasure International Limited

FERRERAA

R EMRANESIOGETREEE B
HITEERINR -_E——F+-_A=+—8H

RAEBFUEEE 2 ERIOT

Description of businesses of
the entity which are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with

the businesses of the Group
HEBREAELEFHZ
EBERFUITREERELEZ
EREAT

Property development and
investment and hotel
operation in Hong Kong
and the PRC

REE LT EEEHEER
RMIE R g a5

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBUFHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREMERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBRFHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREEHMERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBRFHERE

Property investment

HEHWERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHMERE

Nature of interest of
the Director in the entity

EERZER EENE

Chairman and Executive
Director of ITC Properties

BEMEZETRER
BITES

Director and shareholder

FEERRR

Director and shareholder

BENERR

Director and shareholder

EEYS

Director and shareholder

FEERRR

Director and shareholder

BEENERR

Director and shareholder

EEYS

Shareholder

&R

Director and shareholder

EERBR

Director and beneficial
shareholder

EENERRR



Name of Director

EEEE

As the Board is independent of the boards of the above mentioned entities,

the Group is capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at

Name of entity which
businesses are considered
to compete or likely to
compete with the
businesses of the Group

HEBRARELEEZ
ERAREURTRERIECERERE

Silver City Limited
REAFR A A

Cosmo Luck Limited
Cosmo Luck Limited
Ocean Region Limited
Ocean Region Limited
Treasure Avenue Limited
BAEBRAR

Earn Wealth Capital Investment Ltd.
BEEIERRAR
Ready Access Ltd.

Ready Access Ltd.

City Corporation Ltd.
City Corporation Ltd.

Big Gold Limited

Big Gold Limited

Rich Joy Investment Ltd
BHEREBRAT]
Profit Grace Holdings Ltd

MESEERAR

arm’s length, from the business of those entities.

Description of businesses of

the entity which are
considered to compete or
likely to compete with

the businesses of the Group

HEBRBRAELREE 2

EBREBFMRATEERERZ

4 Aop

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREMERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBUFHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
RBEENEHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBUFHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREMERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBREHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
REBUFHERE

Property investment in
Hong Kong
RBEENEHERE

E

Nature of interest of
the Director in the entity

EERZER ERNE

Director and shareholder
BEERKRE
Beneficial shareholder

Bamlk®R

Bl

Beneficial shareholder
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Beneficial shareholder
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Shareholder

Beneficial Shareholder



As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions of persons, other R -ZT——F+-A=+—H EFUIHIAT
than Directors, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as  RANA &)z & RARRIR (7 F A F gz 50k
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO & —MIRIEE S KIS KHIE336IEMERF 2

were as follows: ERMATENT
Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
Long position/ Capacity/Nature Number of capital of
Name of Shareholder Short position of interest shares held the Company
EARATE
BITRAZ
BRRERB "E/ K Bt mtE FERGHE BHOBED
(@) Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles (Note 1) Long position Beneficial owner 1,132,450 0.17%
BREISR &+ (MzF1) HAE ExEEA 1,132,450 0.17%
Long position Interest of controlled 194,336,000 29.55%
corporation
HE BB RE 2R 194,336,000 29.55%
Ms. Ng Yuen Lan, Macy (Note 1) Long position Interest of spouse 195,468,450 29.72%
mmmz L (fzt1) e LB s 195,468,450 29.72%
ITC Corporation Limited (“ITC") Long position Interest of controlled 194,336,000 29.55%
(Note 1) corporation
EECESBEERAR ([EBEECE]) #& Rt VNI 3y 194,336,000 29.55%
(Hizt1)
ITC Investment Holdings Limited Long position Interest of controlled 194,336,000 29.55%
(“ITC Investment”) (Note 1) corporation
ITC Investment Holdings Limited 7R et UNCiPR 24 194,336,000 29.55%
("ITC Investment”) (#f3£1)
Leaptop Investments Limited (Note 1) Long position Interest of controlled 194,336,000 29.55%
corporation
Leaptop Investments Limited (#7:71) 1A s YNCIPA 3 194,336,000 29.55%
Asia Will Limited (“AWL") (Note 1) Long position Beneficial owner 194,336,000 29.55%

BEERADR ([BE]) (A1) 8-) ERBEEA 194,336,000 29.55%



Long position/ Capacity/Nature
Name of Shareholder Short position of interest
BRERERB BR/ KR 56 ERME

(b)

China Enterprises Limited (“CEL") Long position

(Note 2)
China Enterprises Limited ([CEL ) HE
(Hit2)

Long position

Cosmos Regent Ltd. (Note 2) Long position
Cosmos Regent Ltd. ( #7:22) HAE

Notes:

@)

AWL was interested in 194,336,000 shares of the Company and was
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Leaptop Investments Limited which in
turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC Investment. ITC Investment
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of ITC. Dr. Chan Kwok Keung, Charles
("Dr. Chan”) directly and indirectly held a total of more than one
third of the issued share capital of ITC and was therefore deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company held by AWL. Dr. Chan
also personally held 1,132,450 shares of the Company. Ms. Ng Yuen
Lan, Macy, the spouse of Dr. Chan, and was therefore deemed to be
interested in the shares of the Company held by AWL and Dr. Chan.

In addition to the interests as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, the Company
was notified that AWL held 195,706,000 shares of the Company as at
31 December 2012.

corporation

REHI AR #E

Beneficial owner

HE BEalBaA

Beneficial owner

BEalBaA

Interest of controlled

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share

Number of capital of
shares held the Company
EEDEE

BITRAZ

FEROBE BHEIH
48,660,424 7.40%
48,660,424 7.40%
250,000 0.04%
250,000 0.04%
43,325,554 6.59%
43,325,554 6.59%

W
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Notes: (Continued)

@)

Million Good Limited and Cosmos Regent Ltd. were interested in
5,334,870 shares of the Company and 43,325,554 shares of the
Company respectively and were wholly-owned subsidiaries of CEL.
CEL was therefore deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Million Good Limited and Cosmos Regent Ltd.

According to the interests as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under 336 of the SFO, CEL held 48,910,424
shares of the Company. The Company was notified that the 250,000
shares of the Company held by CEL in the capacity of beneficial owner
had been sold and CEL held 48,660,424 shares of the Company as at
31 December 2012.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Company had

not been notified of any other persons (other than the Directors) who

had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company which would be required to be disclosed to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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The change in the information of the Directors since the publication of the
interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2012
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules were

set out below:

A discretionary bonus for the year ended 31 December 2012 was paid to Ms.

Chan Ling, Eva in the amount of HK$300,000 in February 2013.

The updated biographic details of the Directors are set out in the "Directors

Profile” section of this annual report.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December

2012.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
Laws although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in

Bermuda.

The aggregate amount of purchases and turnover attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers and customers were less than 30% of the total value of

the Group's purchases and turnover respectively.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this report, the Company

has maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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During the year, the Group did not make any charitable donation.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the Company

to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHEUNG HON KIT
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Deloitte.

R « BIEBRD D617

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

EBLEE88THE 35/F One Pacific Place
KNOEH 3518 88 Queensway
/a5 %b Hong Kong
=
TO THE MEMBERS OF ROSEDALE HOTEL HOLDINGS LIMITED FHBEBEERERAT
HEBEEEREGRAT (RERZZME T ERAA)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Rosedale Hotel
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 157, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and of
its loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 ## =& — =41 =H=—+—HIL K&

Turnover
Direct operating costs

Gross profit

Interest income

Other income and gains

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
amount due from an investee

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
other intangible assets

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Increase (decrease) in fair value of
investments held for trading

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss on disposal of an associate

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Increase in fair value of
investment properties

Share of result of an associate

Fair value gain (loss) on derivative
financial instrument

Loss before taxation
Taxation expense

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive expense

Exchange difference arising on
translation of financial statements of
foreign operations

Release of translation reserve upon
disposal of subsidiaries

Total comprehensive expense
for the year
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2012
HK$'000
—g—-—F
TET

429,466
(318,660)

110,806
194
3,419
(5.550)
(162,965)
(18,602)

17,037

(34,081)

(44,183)

1,849
2,216

(26,251)

9,971
(2,100)

128

(148,112)
(933)

(149,045)

5,822

5,822

(143,223)

2011
HK$'000
=F %

FHIT

391,023
(330,710)

60,313
164
1,877
(4,570)
(183,091)
(23,895)

(6,383)
(10,094)
(31,150)

(9,540)

9,487
)

(24,591)

13,543
(7,089)

(2,858)

(217,886)
(1,445)

(219,331)

60,146

(1,105)

59,041

(160,290)



For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% =% — =41 =H=—+—HILFK&

2012 2011
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
—s-—% —E——%
B 5 FHERT FHIT
Loss for the year attributable to: REEEERTIA TS :
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ SN (143,188) (206,643)
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR (5,857) (12,688)
(149,045) (219,331)
Total comprehensive expense THEMX LR T ATRERS:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZA/NECIEZ Z DN (137,366) (153,674)
Non-controlling interests FEE MR A (5,857) (6,616)
(143,223) (160,290)
HK$ HK$
BT BT
LOSS PER SHARE BRER
- Basic —H R 15 (0.22) (0.31)

— Diluted —#E N/A RE A (0.31)



At 31 December 2012 =% — 4+ =H=+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Interest in an associate
Interests in jointly controlled entities
Available-for-sale investments
Other intangible assets
Amount due from an associate
Pledged bank deposits
Club debentures, at cost less

impairment

Other assets

Current assets
Inventories
Amount due from an investee
Available-for-sale investments
Trade and other receivables
Investments held for trading
Pledged bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

Asset classified as held for sale

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Loan from a related company

Tax liabilities

Amount due to a related company

Borrowings — amount due
within one year

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Derivative financial instrument

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

ERY T E

BREME

N N NI e
RAREHIERE 2 #E s
AfHERE
Hip | EE

FE U — SR Bt & X B RIR
SEHEMRITER
SES KA EHIRRE

Hith & E

MENEE

FE

e — R BURE R B FIR
AHHERE

B 5 K E A R YRR
FEEEZKRE
EEMRITHER
RITEH MRS

DERFEHEZEE

mEAE

B 5 M E A AR
—HKBERFTER
HIAE &

FEff —RBAE R B FIR
fEE——FREBIHKA

FE AT B /B8 2 R FEHE AR AR R SR IE

TEEMIA

//ZE@JE{ /?%E

BERERTBAEE

NOTES

LiE=3

16
17
18
19
20
21
18
27

22

23
24
20
25
26
27
27

28

29
30

31

32

34
35

2012
HK$'000
—g—-—F
TET

2,202,407
324,000

4
17,050
63,877

31,896
11,780

520
50,804

2,702,338

6,184

54,001
290
3,263
364,066

427,804

427,804

117,061

11,571

467,889

9,157
2,730

608,408
(180,604)

2,521,734

2011
HK$'000
=F %
TET

2,137,518
271,400
4

17,050
63,877
39,018
33,996
14,933

520
32,861

2,611,177

6,088
12,300
56,259
64,220
15,682

353,202

507,751
32,727

540,478

131,886
14,569
14,138

100

483,880

9,157
2,858

656,588
(116,110)

2,495,067



At 31 December 2012 #=%— =4+ =H=+—H
2012 2011
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—B——F —T——F
B 5 FHERT FHIT
Non-current liabilities FEneaE
Borrowings — amount due BE-——F&IHRIE
after one year 32 458,222 222,963
Deferred taxation BRI IR 36 173,754 177,858
631,976 400,821
Net assets BEFE 1,889,758 2,094,246
Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital [N 37 6,577 6,577
Reserves & 39 1,698,410 1,848,382
Equity attributable to owners of RABIHER AEGEER
the Company 1,704,987 1,854,959
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR AE 5 184,771 239,287
Total equity AT 1,889,758 2,094,246
The consolidated financial statements on pages 42 to 157 were approved R FLBEEFISTAZ GAMBHRERDN =

- AT _HESEEgIEREET
T YA TIEERREE:

and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2013 and are

signed on its behalf by:

RIELE (823
E: HITEE

CHEUNG HON KIT
CHAIRMAN

CHAN LING, EVA
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR



For the year ended 31 December 2012 ## =%

At 1 January 2011

Other comprehensive income for
the year - exchange difference
arising on translation of financial
statements of foreign operations

Release of translation reserve upon
disposal of subsidiaries

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

Transfer of convertible note reserve
upon redemption

Disposal of subsidiaries

Purchase of shares of subsidiaries
from non-controlling
shareholders

At 31 December 2011 and
1 January 2012

Other comprehensive income for
the year - exchange difference
arising on translation of financial
statements of foreign operations

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

Disposal of a subsidiary

Purchase of shares of subsidiaries
from non-controlling
shareholders

At 31 December 2012

Note a: When the Group increases its interest in an entity that is already an entity
controlled by the Group, it is accounted for as equity transaction. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Other reserves represent the differences between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid that is recognised directly in equity.

Rog-—F-f-8

AEEAMBEARA
-BREBNAREBRE
KELZERZE

HENRARRER
B RE
AEEER

AERRERA (%)
B8

REBSETARRERE
HENBAR

REZEBG U
b i)

HEEZERZR

rEERR

AERZERA (F)
4

HE-FHBAR
REERCEE R
2B

Share
capital
HK$'000

B&
TEL

6577

6,577

6,577

Share
premium
HK$'000

RiEE
TEL

1,248,048

1,248,048

1,248,048

Special
reserve
HK$'000
(Note 39)
BHRE
FiL
(M3t39)

658,303

658,303

658,303

- ZH =1+ —HILFEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAAEEAERL

Convertible Asset
notes  Translation  revaluation Other  Accumulated
reserve reserve reserve reserves losses
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(Note a)

TR EE
RERE ERfR Efffif it 2R
Fr T Fhx FhL ThL

(Miita)
63,757 191,622 1,719 (60,683) (103,786)
- 54,074 - - -
- (1,105) - - -
- - - - (206,643)
- 52,969 - - (206,643)
(63,757) - - - 63,757
- - (1,719) © 1,719
- - - 3,076 -
- 244,591 - (57,607) (244,953)
- 5822 - - -
- - - - (143,188)
- 5822 - - (143,188)
= = = (12,606) 3
- 250,413 - (70,213) (388,141)
ffizta :

SREE RN E
EERZERE-

Total
HK$'000

At

TEL

2,005,557

54,074
(1,105)

(206,643)

(153,674)

3,076

1,854,959

5822
(143,188)

(137,366)

(12,606)

1,704,987

Non-
controlling
interests
HK$'000

RS
TEL

263,594

6,072
(12,688)

(6,616)

(3,076)

239,287

(5,857)

(5,857)

735
(49,300

184,771

Total
HK$'000

At

FAL

2,269,151

60,146
(1,105)
(219,331)

(160,290)

(14,615)

2,094,246

5822

(149,045)

(143,223)

735

(62,000)

1,889,758
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Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the year
Adjustments for:
Share of result of an associate
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Interest income
Effective interest expenses of
convertible notes
Other interest expenses
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Fair value (gain) loss on derivative
financial instrument
Gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investment
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of other intangible assets
Impairment loss recognised
in respect of property,
plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of amount due from
an investee
(Increase) decrease in fair value of
investments held for trading
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Loss on disposal of an associate
Increase in fair value of
investment properties
Amortisation of other
intangible assets

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Movements in working capital

Decrease (increase) in trade and
other receivables

Decrease (increase) in investments
held for trading

Increase in inventories

(Increase) decrease in other assets

Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash from (used in) operations
Taxation (paid) refund in the People’s
Republic of China

Net cash from (used in) operating
activities

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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2012
HK$'000
—g—-—F
TET

(149,045)
2,100
76,804
(194)
13,102
26,251
(128)
(17,037)

34,081

44,183

(1,849)
(2,216)

(9,971)

4,937

21,018

12,229

17,241

(96)
(17,943)
(13,114)

(1,683)

19,335

(5.,441)

13,894

2011
HK$'000

—F %

TET

(219,331)
7,089

99,597
(164)

11,791
12,104

24,591

2,858

10,094

31,150

6,383

9,540

(9,487)
(13,543)

5115

(22,204)

(4,160)

(6,211)

(405)
9,687

(17,589)

(18,678)

(40,882)

997

(39,885)



For the year ended 31 December 2012 ## =& — =41 =H=—+—HIL &

2012 2011
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
—B——F —T——%F
B 5 FERT FHIT
Cash flows from investing activities REEZBZHEEeRE
Additions to property, plant and BEWE HWERBHEAR
equipment and investment wEME
properties (240,778) (444,389)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEEEFRITER (55,916) (14,933)
Proceeds from disposal of HE ATt E R A TS RIA
available-for-sale investment 71,296 -
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits {2 EX 2 IR 1T 17 3K 55,806 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE R RZE
plant and equipment FR8 IR 22,481 74,073
Repayment from an investee —RFIRENTER 12,300 =
Interest received B U 8 194 164
Refund of construction cost iR B E AN - 17,221
Disposal of subsidiaries &5 B B A A 42 - 80,904
Receipt from an associate WEE —FKEERT - 5
Net cash used in investing activities KRERSMAZH S FHE (134,617) (286,955)
Cash flows from financing activities REFH RSN
New borrowings raised MEEE 289,000 691,343
Repayment of bank and BEBTRAMES
other borrowings (69,732) (46,037)
Purchase of shares of subsidiaries mFEIER AR B BB AR 2
from non-controlling shareholders &5 (62,000) =
(Repayment) receipt of loan from (EB)WE—REEATER
a related company (14,569) 14,569
Interest paid BEAFE (13,102) (16,261)
(Repayment to) advance from (fE8) W —REE QB K
a related company (100) 100
Redemption of convertible notes fE Bl AT IR =R - (341,880)
Repayment of loans from EEBEQRER
related companies - (10,000)
Net cash from financing activities REEEECREFE 129,497 291,834
Net increase (decrease) in cash and HeERBREFEEAER LM
cash equivalents CR) F58 8,774 (35,006)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F#2¥E & &IRE EH(EIER
of the year 353,202 387,519
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ [ &= 5 B) 5/ 2 2,090 689

Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRrRzEekREEE
the year, represented by EHE A
Bank balances and cash RITEHKEE® 364,066 353,202



For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% =% — =41 =H=—+—HILFK&

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its substantial shareholder
is ITC Corporation Limited. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the

corporate information of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the business of hotel operation and trading

of securities.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity and
going concern of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) in view of the fact that the Group's current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately HK$180,604,000 as at
31 December 2012 and recorded recurring losses of approximately
HK$149,045,000 for the year then ended. The directors of the
Company are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations as they fall due for the
foreseeable future, after taking into consideration that (i) the Group
has obtained additional banking facilities of HK$650,000,000 in
October 2012 to refinance its short-term bank borrowings due
January 2013 amounting to HK$435,000,000 with maturity dates
from 2014 through 2017; and (ii) the Group has other assets available
to pledge for obtaining further banking facilities. Although the new
HK$650,000,000 banking facilities contain a repayable on demand
clause which the bank may demand repayment at any time, the
directors of the Company believe that the Company will only be

demanded to repay according to the scheduled repayment dates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 ## =& — =41 =H=—+—HIL &

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures —

Transfers of Financial Assets

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to HKAS 12
Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets in the current year. Under
the amendments, investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model in accordance with HKAS 40 Investment Property are
presumed to be recovered entirely through sale for the purposes of
measuring deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain

circumstances.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% =%

The Group measures its investment properties using the fair value
model. As a result of the application of the amendments to HKAS 12,
the directors reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties are held under a
business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, the directors have determined
that the ‘sale’ presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS 12 is

rebutted.

The application of the amendments to HKAS 12 has resulted in the
Group recognising deferred tax liabilities on changes in fair value of
the investment properties of approximately HK$4,000,000 for the year

ended 31 December 2012, which is on the same basis as prior year.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs

that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 —

2011 Cycle’
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities’
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and
Transition Disclosures?

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance’
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 ## =%

Amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13
HKAS 19

(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 27

(as revised in 2011)
HKAS 28

(as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 32

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

- ZH =+ —HILFEE

Investment Entities?

Financial Instruments?

Consolidated Financial Statements’
Joint Arrangements’

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’
Fair Value Measurement’

Employee Benefits’

Separate Financial Statements’

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures’

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income’

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities*

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.
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The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application issues relating
to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and

settlement”.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require entities to disclose information
about rights of offset and related arrangements (such as collateral
posting requirements) for financial instruments under an enforceable

master netting agreement or similar arrangement.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013 and interim periods within those annual
periods. The disclosures should also be provided retrospectively for all
comparative periods. However, the amendments to HKAS 32 are not
effective until annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014,

with retrospective application required.

The directors anticipate that the application of these amendments to
HKAS 32 and HKFRS 7 will not result in more disclosures being made
with regard to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities in the

future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 ## =& — =41 =H=—+—HIL K&

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the RZTTNFEH 2B AN BREERE
IS EERMEENHERAEZHBRE -

classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9

amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification and R -—TFER 2B BU B MELELE
measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition. IREEeMBENERFEUARTHE
RZHE °

ERMBREENEIR T ER T

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

mr:
e All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS o HBEEHERFEIE[EMIA
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are REFTE] BEANZFEEERER

subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally

recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% =% — =41 =H=—+—HILFK&

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial
liabilities attributable to changes in the financial liabilities” credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was

presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future may
have significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group's
financial assets. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable

estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.
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In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued, including HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and HKAS 28
(as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial statements.
HK(SIC) — Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities will be
withdrawn upon the effective date of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10,
there is only one basis for consolidation, that is, control. In addition,
HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that contains three

elements:

(@) power over an investee,

(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with

the investee, and

(c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount

of the investor’s returns.

Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex

scenarios.
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HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Venture. HKFRS 11 deals
with how a joint arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control should be classified. HK(SIC) — Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities —
Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers will be withdrawn upon the
effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are
classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on the rights
and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In contrast, under
HKAS 31, there are three types of joint arrangements: jointly controlled

entities, jointly controlled assets and jointly controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be accounted
for using the equity method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled
entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using the equity method

of accounting or proportionate consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the current

standards.

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12
were issued to clarify certain transitional guidance on the application of

these five HKFRSs for the first time.
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These five standards, together with the amendments relating to the
transitional guidance, are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 with earlier application permitted provided that all

of these standards are applied at the same time.

Based on the existing group structure, the application of these five
standards is not expected to have a significant impact on the amounts

reported in the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. The
scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except in specified circumstances. In general, the
disclosure requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all

assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013, with earlier application permitted. The directors anticipate
that the application of the new standard may affect certain amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and result in more

extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
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The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income introduce new terminology for the statement
of comprehensive income and income statement. Under the
amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is
renamed as a ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’ and an ‘income statement’ is renamed as a ‘statement of profit
or loss’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or
in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the amendments
to HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to be grouped
into two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis — the amendments do not change the option to present items of

other comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when the

amendments are applied in future accounting periods.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued but not
yet effective will have no material effect on amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set out in these

consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties, investments held
for trading and derivative financial instrument that are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in

exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain

benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective

date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used

by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from

the Group's equity therein.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% =% — =41 =H=—+—HILFK&

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling

Interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even

if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is

recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it

o derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of
the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when control

is lost;

o derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including
any components of other comprehensive income attributable to

them); and

o recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest, with any
resulting difference being recognise as a gain or loss in profit or

loss attributable to the Group.
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Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly
to accumulated losses as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled

entity.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint

control over those policies.
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The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statement of associates used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Groups for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, investments in associates are
initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf

of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of an associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwiill, which is

included within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
iS necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group's investment in an associate. \When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment

subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of an associate that results in the Group losing significant
influence over that associate, any retained investment is measured at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value
on initial recognition as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between the previous carrying amount of the associate
attributable to the retained interest and its fair value is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In
addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or
loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it loses significant influence

over that associate.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group'’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests

in the associate that are not related to the Group.
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Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a separate
entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic activity

of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.

The financial statements of jointly controlled entities used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events in similar

circumstances.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the jointly controlled entities. When the Group’s share of losses
of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that
jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a jointly controlled
entity recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwvill,

which is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
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Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the Group's
investment in a jointly controlled entity. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of

the investment subsequently increases.

Upon disposal of a jointly controlled entity that results in the Group
losing joint control over that jointly controlled entity, any retained
investment is measured at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset
in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between the previous
carrying amount of the jointly controlled entity attributable to the
retained interest and its fair value is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the jointly controlled entity. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that jointly controlled entity on
the same basis as would be required if that jointly controlled entity had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or
loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income by that jointly
controlled entity would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when it

loses joint control over that jointly controlled entity.
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Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled entity, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the jointly controlled
entity are recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the jointly controlled entity that are not

related to the Group.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-
current asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within

one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in

its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal group) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value

less costs to sell.

When the Group classifies an asset (or disposal group) as held for sale,
but its sale no longer meeting the conditions for such classification, the
Group shall cease to classify the asset (or disposal group) as held for

sale.
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The Group shall measures a non-current asset that cease to be classified

as held for sale at the lower of:

(a) its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale,
adjusted for any depreciation, that would have been recognised

had the asset not been classified as held for sale; and

(b) its recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent decision not

to sell.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue from hotel operations comprising hotel accommodation, food

and banquet operations are recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefit will flow to the Group and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial

asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land (classified as
finance leases) and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of services or for administrative purposes other than hotel properties
under construction and construction in progress are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than hotel properties under
construction and construction in progress less their estimated residual

value over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of the each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes plant and equipment in the course
of installation and for own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other plant and equipment,

commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Hotel properties under construction are stated at cost less any
recognised impairment losses. Cost includes professional fees and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets

are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation. Investment properties include land held
for undetermined future use which is regarded as held for capital

appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are

included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the

investment properties under construction.
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An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the property

is derecognised.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial
assets held for trading and those designated at FVTPL on initial

recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the

near future; or

o it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the

Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-

term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.
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Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the line item in consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Fair value is determined in the manner

disclosed in note 41c.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
amounts due from an associate, amount due from an investee, trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets (“AFS") are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and

receivables or held-to-maturity investments.
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Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss

when the Group's right to receive the dividends is established.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period (see accounting policy in

respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial

assets have been affected.
For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could

include:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.
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Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that

correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash

flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such

impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.
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Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue cost.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost and of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

&R EE (8)

EHEERE (F)
RN AT ECEMEET = © R
BEESENERMEBMRS  ME-H
MAOERE FERERREERREE S
AR RISEAEERZBEBRKER
BaEEE EZEENRERBOER 2
AR T B 1518 38 2R FE RRURL (B AR 2 8 3 K
7o

Z A ERIRA T A

MEEERET 2 EBIBRATARAH
ZHMHENRERABEMRATAZ EE
MoRATRA BN

BATA

BATARBHALSEEER gD (K
HBEEMBRE) 2ERMEL -BAARE
BITZBRAT ARWEZ FREFORIIRE
BRBITRAER -

BEEFEX

ERMNZETDAESRE B2 HHKRAR R
2 EERBREN SR} 275 BRM X
TTRBERERR RSB A B BT FHX
ERZBEHRE ERTREFRAKRE
N (BREERERME NI HEREBD 2
—ENRERERRIE XFHAR
Hod s Bk i) EREFE2F K-

M ERIRERA R EERER -



For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% =% — =41 =H=—+—HILFK

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liabilities
are either held for trading or it is those designated at FVTPL on initial

recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in

the near future; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent

actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising on remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in

profit or loss excludes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both the liability
and conversion option components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified

as an equity instrument.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds of the
issue of the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the holder to
convert the notes into equity, is included in equity (convertible notes

reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible notes
is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
equity component, representing the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible notes reserve until the conversion option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in convertible notes reserve will be
transferred to share premium). Where the option remains unexercised
at the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible notes reserve will be
released to the retained profits (accumulated losses). No gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating
to the liability component are included in the carrying amount of the
liability portion and amortised over the period of the convertible notes

using the effective interest method.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, loan from
a related company, amount due to a related company, borrowings
and amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
of inventories are calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less

all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests
in jointly controlled entities, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected

to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through sale. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
for such investment properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected

manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.

Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for

business combination.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful
lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the

asset is derecognised.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows

have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable

amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an

expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a

straight-line basis.
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Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the

lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is released over the lease term on a straight-
line basis except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building
elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and

accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not re-translated.
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Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the re-
translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on
the re-translation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).
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On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or jointly controlled entities that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the

accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing

costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.
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Payments to the Group's defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, including state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, are recognised as an expense when

employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors, employees of the Group and other

eligible participants

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period with a corresponding increase

in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share options

reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained profits (accumulated

losses).
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of available-for-sale investments

In determining whether there is objective evidence of impairment in
relation to the Group's available-for-sale investments in unlisted equity
securities, the Group takes into consideration of the decline in market
values of the properties held by its investees. Judgment is required when
determining whether it is necessary to make any impairment on the
investment cost in these available-for-sale investments by taking into
consideration of the decline in market values of the properties held by
the investees over the respective costs. Where the market price of the
properties declines more than expected, a further impairment loss may

arise.

EH ARl 2 RRARE SRR 2B
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FEZEERABERAEZEANRAR -

st IR ERE 2R 1E

BEEREFHEERAKEI LTRARE
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Estimated impairment of available-for-sale investments
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of relevant available-
for sale investments is approximately HK$63,877,000 (2011:
HK$63,877,000). The directors performed impairment assessment of
the Group's available-for-sale investments and no impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss for the years ended 31 December 2012 and

2011.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is determined with reference to the fair value of the property, plant
and equipment less costs to sell or the value-in-use calculations. An
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the recoverable amount. Where the recoverable
amount is less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment is approximately HK$2,202,407,000 (2011:
HK$2,137,518,000) (net of accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss of approximately HK$556,506,000 (2011: HK$519,986,000)).

The directors performed impairment assessment of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and an impairment loss of
HK$44,183,000 (2011: HK$31,150,000) was recognised in profit or

loss during the year.
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Depreciation of hotel properties

The Group’s carrying amount of hotel properties as at 31
December 2012 was approximately HK$2,057,167,000 (2011:
HK$1,276,988,000). The Group depreciates the hotel properties on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of their remaining unexpired terms
of the leases and 2.5% per annum. The useful lives reflect the directors’
estimate of the periods that the Group intends to derive economic
benefits from the use of the Group's hotel properties. During the year,
the useful lives of the hotel properties have been reviewed and these
estimates are considered to be appropriate. Included in the above
amount is a hotel property with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$217,017,000 (2011: HK$243,778,000) of which the useful life is
determined to be the shorter of 2.5% per annum and the unexpired
terms of the leases. A subsidiary of the Company has been granted
the right to operate and manage the hotel in Guangzhou, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") for a period from January 1987 to
January 2017, and subject to certain conditions to be fulfilled by the
subsidiary, the operating period may be extended for a further period of
20 years. Should the conditions not be fulfilled, the depreciation period
of the hotel properties would be adjusted and up to January 2017 only.
When estimating the useful life of this hotel, it is assumed that the right
to operate and manage the hotel can be extended for a further period

of 20 years.

HEYESTE
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Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the directors have reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group's investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties over time.
Therefore, in measuring the Group's deferred taxation on investment
properties, the directors have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of investment properties measured using the
fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a
result, the Group has recognised deferred taxes on increase in fair value
of investment properties with an enterprise income tax (“EIT”) rate of

25%, amounting to HK$4,000,000 (2011: HK$Nil).

Turnover represents the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable from outside customers, net of discounts and sales-related
taxes during the year. An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year

is as follows:

Hotel operations B A

REYFEZELHE

P EUATEERANEZ R EMERN
EEZELEHBEENS EFERAR
SEZEBRENEBE BRAAEERE
REMERE 2 B BIERERRET
HHFEREMERE Z BRI EEF
woE HEASEREMEZELH
HE BEERAERAAFEEENGTEY
BEMEEDENSRHEETEKE 2R
TEEEES AL AEECRKREDE
REBEBMACERGTR ([REMEF
1) B 325 %1 3R 8 1E Bt 18 4,000,0005%

T(ZF——F )

EERBRENFACKRBRINEES 2K
EBRFEERTNMEERBHRE KK
BRAFRE2ERENTWT

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB-——fF —T——fF
FET FHET
429,466 391,023
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Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
business activities that the segment carried out. No operating segments
identified by the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated

in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments under

HKFRS 8 are as follows:

1. Hotel operations — hotel accommodation, food and banquet

operations

2. Securities trading — trading of equity securities

H
RRDEMESE 2 X EBRE -
SEARESERFTEGEELER

AEBERBEREMBRELENFHTE D

ZEEAREREEDEMT

1. BEEEHEEE BERESE
%

e s
2. BHFEE-BRAEFEER
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The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by REBZWARFEEASAIRERLEED
reportable and operating segment. HOMWT o
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE-Z——-F+=-HA=+—HLFE
Securities
Hotel operations trading Consolidated
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERE HEEE e
FERT FERT FET
TURNOVER BER 429,466 - 429,466
RESULTS ES
Amount excluding impairment £ % (T EEEMEREE
loss recognised in respect of IVOSE/ERE: =) E -l
other intangible assets and ERRREREE)
property, plant and equipment (59,620) 1,845 (57,775)
Impairment loss recognised in HihEBREENRDE -
respect of other intangible e RREZEER
assets and property, plantand  JR{EEE
equipment (78,264) - (78,264)
Segment (loss) profit SR (E1E) & A (137,884) 1,845 (136,039)
Interest income FEHA 194
Share of result of an associate JE(R—REEE R A A (2,100)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 1 & B A 7 2 Yz 2,216
Increase in fair value of WEMEZ AT EEEN
investment properties 9,971
Fair value gain on derivative MESBMIAEZ AT EBRR
financial instrument 128
Finance costs RN (18,602)
Central administrative costs and R RITEUA AN & R 5 Bo (b 3
unallocated corporate expenses  F 32 (3.880)

Loss before taxation B A5 A& 18 (148,112)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 HEZZ——F+-A=1+—HLFE
Securities
Hotel operations trading Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B JE 45 FHEE Foe)
FHET FHIT FHIT
TURNOVER = £ 391,023 = 391,023
RESULTS 4

Amount excluding impairment &% (TEFEEMEREE
loss recognised in respect of AR W2 - RS sk i 2

other intangible assets and EERBEREE)

property, plant and equipment (122,255) (9,549) (131,804)
Impairment loss recognised in Hh R EEA RS

respect of other intangible 2SN R 2 B RER

assets and property, plant and BEEBE

equipment (41,244) - (41,244)
Segment loss SEEEE (163,499) (9,549) (173,048)
Interest income FEHA 164
Share of result of an associate IR —REE R RIEE (7,089)
Impairment loss recognised in JEY —R#EIRE R RIFHIEZ

respect of amount due from EERBEERE

an investee (6,383)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M B A7)z Wi 9,487
Loss on disposal of an associate & — K Et & A 7] Z E518 9)
Increase in fair value of KEMEZ AT EEEN

investment properties 13,543
Fair value loss on derivative MESMITAZ AT EEEE

financial instrument (2,858)
Finance costs A& A AR (23,895)
Central administrative costs HRRITEUK AR KR 5 B %

and unallocated corporate 53

expenses (27,798)

Loss before taxation % Al E5 48 (217,886)
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The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group's accounting policies described in note 4. Segment profit or loss
represents the profit or loss from each segment without allocation of
central administrative costs, directors’ salaries, interest income, finance
costs, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, certain impairment losses, loss on
disposal of an associate, change in fair value of investment properties,
share of results of an associate and fair value gain (loss) of derivative
financial instrument. There was asymmetrical allocation to operating
segments because the Group allocated borrowings to operating
segments without allocating the related finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purpose

of resource allocation and performance assessment.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable and operating segment:

Segment assets PEEE

Hotel operations B JE A

Securities trading BHEE

Total segment assets NEEERE
Investment properties KEME
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE

Interest in an associate R—REE R A2 Em
Interests in jointly controlled entities R E S B B 2
Bank balances and cash RITEHRKLE®

Other unallocated assets HMARDBLEE
Consolidated assets TAaBE

BED B IR BN ZAM A LR
S BEAR D EEMNIERES

DEEE RN EE

EFRA RS EH

RITBRA EZHE MBWRA -BE

PR - S M B AR 2 W

CETRER

B HE-—ZFRBEQRZBE REME
ZAFEERY BH-FKBEQAE

BERUTEEMIAZA
18) ARAEEBEED
MAEDEHEBBERA  HELE
M2 DRI TERR -t A EEEE
DECER M FHEEE

REEZHPH
Bk

AT RASBIR A RE M4

SE=RECRITE

2012
HK$'000
—B-—-fF
FRET

2,328,221
290

2,328,511
324,000
63,877

4

17,050
364,066
32,634

3,130,142

T ERE OB
EEEHE-

DE

S
D
?&1&
N
Rt

2,276,585
15,682

2,292,267
271,400
63,877

4

17,050
353,202
153,855

3,151,655

Um
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Segment liabilities

Hotel operations

Securities trading

Total segment liabilities
Tax liabilities
Deferred taxation

Other unallocated liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating

resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than assets
relating to investment properties, interest in an associate, interests

in jointly controlled entities , available-for-sale investments, bank

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% =% — =41 =H=—+—HILF&

PEEE

BIEEE
EHEERE
DHEABEEE
MIREE
EIEF IR
HEtpRn B E

mea

il

balances and cash and other unallocated assets; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than

liabilities relating to current and deferred tax liabilities and other

unallocated liabilities.

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—F—=F ===
FERT THET
1,019,847 766,504
68 53
1,019,915 766,557
11,571 14,138
173,754 177,858
35,144 98,856
1,240,384 1,057,409

KROPRARHEDBRIEERDE

MEEEAEDRELENE A
BREME N —RBERR 2R
REFZEGIEE s THEER
B RITREB IR S AR EMARDA
BEARBZEERI: K

MEREAEDRELENE A
A REERBRERE MR DA
BEERZABRIN-
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2012 —E-=f%
Hotel Securities Consolidated
operations trading Unallocated total
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BIERE EHEE E GEeast
FHExT F#&xT FHExT FHExT
Amounts included in the measure &t2 % 8% F sk &5 18
of segment profit or loss or PEEERGAZ
segment assets: I :
Increase in fair value of BIEEEREATER
investment held for trading &N - 1,849 - 1,849
Amortisation of other Hith @\ & E 2 8
intangible assets 4,937 - - 4,937
Addition to non-current assets  JE;RENE E I N 199,722 - - 199,722
Depreciation of property, LERE SIS
plant and equipment e 73,083 - 3,721 76,804
Loss on disposal of property, HEME R RHE
plant and equipment Z BB 26,251 - - 26,251
2011 —_ZF—
Hotel Securities Consolidated
operations trading Unallocated total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEE S HHER RO o=
FHIT FHIT FHIT FHIT
Amounts included in the measure &2 % 8% 5 5k &5 18 3k
of segment profit or loss or PEEERFAZ
segment assets: I :
Decrease in fair value of RIEEEREATERE
investment held for trading k> - (9,540) - (9,540)
Amortisation of other HhEp & E 2 8
intangible assets 5,115 - - 5,115
Addition to non-current assets  FE/RENE E G N 447,015 - - 447,015
Depreciation of property, M R REEZ
plant and equipment e 95,081 = 4,516 99,597
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE AR R

plant and equipment Z BB 24,591 - - 24,591
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Addition to non-current assets include property, plant and equipment

during the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

Information about the Group's revenue from external customers is

presented based on the location of services provided in respect of hotel

operations:
Hong Kong BE
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TEERE)

The information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented

based on the geographic location of the assets as follows:

The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TEERE)
Hong Kong e
Others Hfh

Note:  Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.

=

BE-—s——FExK-—FT——&F+—-A1
T—BLFE FRBEEEMEEY
X HBERERE

BERAAEERBIES ZWAERT
BIRHIRIS P (BUEEREMS )5

N

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB——fF —T——fF
FET FHET
171,881 109,649
257,585 281,374
429,466 391,023

BRAREEIRBDEEZERTIREEM
b [ 517K -

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000

= —F——%
FiERT TAETT
1,661,092 1,731,326
867,371 732,822
66,322 34,223
2,594,785 2,498,371

i ERBEETRESRIA-
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There is no revenue from any single external customers that contributed
over 10% on the total sales of the Group during the years ended 31

December 2012 and 2011.

No analysis of the Group's revenue from its major services and security

trading is presented as no discrete financial information is prepared

RBE-_Z——FR-_F——F+_H
=+ HILFE WEXE ERE—SE
BEPZBAEAEBAHEERBI0%

WEEHNANEEREEETBRE RES
BEZWADH - RE /I ER DR

based on this analysis and the cost to develop it would be excessive. EENBER MEREZKAKE R
=,
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-——F —T——F
FET FAET
Interest income on: RE TEIEIEZFBWA
Bank deposits RITERK 194 164
2012 2011
HK$°000 HK$'000
—B-——F —T——%F
FET FHET
An analysis of the Group's other REEZ HWRA R ESDITAT
income and gains is as follows:
Exchange gain bE & U 16 269
Sundry income I A 3,403 1,608

3,419 1,877
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2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-——fF —T——fF
F#&xT FHT
Interest on borrowings wholly ARAFRNEHEEZEEZFE
repayable within five years 23,828 15,242
Loan facilities fee EXRMEER - 266
Effective interest on convertible notes AR TR 2 BT S - 11,791
Total finance costs 42 & R AN 23,828 27,299
Less: amounts capitalised BB EAEZRIE (5,226) (3,404)
18,602 23,895
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—s—=% —E——%
FET FHT
Loss before taxation has been arrived BRRAISEE R T5SE:
at after charging:
Depreciation of property, plant and M HERBEZITE
equipment 76,804 99,597
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hithmp & E 2 #H 4,937 5,115
Total depreciation and amortisation WeE RS EE 81,741 104,712
Auditor’s remuneration BRI & 4,001 4,268
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ~ ERERAS H 2 FEKA 44,166 43,886
Impairment loss recognised in respect of Hh fEUGRIE 2 B RERRE BB
other receivables 11,526 6,653
Minimum lease payments paid in respect of EfNHEWE 2 HIER S
rented premises 64,407 65,856
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) {EE XA (BIEEEMHE) 144,084 136,601
and after crediting: WEFTA:
Gross rental income from shops in hotel MRNBEEMEANzEE 2 A A
properties less negligible outgoings HRTER A ABE S 23,475 20,952
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Details of emoluments paid by the Group to each of the directors are as REBSNTEESFTZMEFBOT:
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE-Z——-F+-HA=+—HLEFE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HER BIRER
wne Hi g7 HE L B
THT THT FTHT FTHT
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit REGLAE - - - -
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva BB L+ 240 1,860 14 2,114

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis BREHELEE - - - -

Independent non-executive BUIFNITES:
directors:
Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva BELKE 60 - - 60
Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert B 5 A 60 - - 60
Mr. Sin Chi Fai hEBEE 60 - - 60
420 1,860 14 2,294
*  Ms. Chan Ling, Eva is also the chief executive of the Company and her * BRRZTIARARITRES  mEE
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by MR e BEEERITHATIRM

her as the chief executive. R 2 Bl -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S NR.EERTHREARMERES
EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST PAID FHES =
EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 HE_Z——F+_A=+T—HILFE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ek RIKER
ok H b & F| FTEMER Rt o
FHBT FHBT FHBT FHBT
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Cheung Hon Kit REGSSE - - - -
Dr. Yap, Allan* Yap, Allanf& £=* - - - -
Ms. Chan Ling, Eva Rt 240 1,040 8 1,288

Mr. Chan Pak Cheung, Natalis BREHEE = = - -

Independent non-executive BFMITES
directors:

Mr. Kwok Ka Lap, Alva BEIKE 60 - - 60

Mr. Poon Kwok Hing, Albert EBEL A 60 - - 60

Mr. Sin Chi Fai EREEEAE 60 - - 60
420 1,040 8 1,468

*  Dr. Yap, Allan retired on 25 May 2011 *  Yap, AllanfE R =T ——FFH A

—+ARHBRE

nEEEeRaRAn N 2012 55 103

Rosedale
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Neither the directors nor chief executive waived any emoluments for

both years.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, one

(2011: one) was director and the chief executive of the Company whose

emolument is included in the disclosures above.

Except the one (2011: one) director and chief executive as disclosed

above, the emoluments of the remaining four highest paid (2011: four)

individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Their emoluments were within

the following bands:

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000

e M HEAAEF
RNEFET &I R

AT R E 2 Bl AR R -

1,000,001/ 7T & 1,500,000/% 7T
1,500,001 7T £2,000,000/% 7T
3,000,001% 7T Z3,500,000/% 7T

R E S - AR T E R ST AR BN

REMME -

AEBRUGSHFMALH L (ZF
—— 5 ) RARRERRITHER

HEFME W EXHE -

BREXFREZ L (ZF——%F: —fu)
EERTBAHEN AREXNTHTHE

7 (ZF——%F:0Of)&
EHBENTX:

2012
HK$"000

FH

6,625
89

6,714

2012
—E—_F

= A £ 2 B

2011
HK$'000
—F %
TERT
4,975

92

5,067

2011
—ZT——%F
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2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E——fF
FET FAT
Current tax: BVEA 1A -

PRC Enterprise Income Tax B EFTISH (4,035) (3,378)
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR (1,002) (1,327)
Deferred tax (note 36): EFERLIA (FFEE36) -

Current year KEE 4,104 3,260
Taxation expense HIAZ (933) (1,445)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated B BTGB AT EF E 2 (G 5T R A

assessable profit for both years. No Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided B E16.5%TE - AR AEEMEFE
as the Group incurred assessable loss for both years. HERISERTEE WA B IREANE

i o

REPECEMBHE([REMBH
E) REERETOEEGD - REB D
BfEARZRER —TEN\F—A—H
FA25% °

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the Group's

PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

AREE 2 BIRM EigE 2EKERP 2K

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before taxation per

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows: HAEEETHROT
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E——fF
FET FET
Loss before taxation K Fi A E 1 (148,112) (217,886)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% ¥R FF 155 K 16.5% 18 2 Fi 18 24,438 35,951
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible 77 7 & E%%R/ﬁﬁﬂ RS AR 2 R 2
in determining taxable profit 2GR (45,907) (64,988)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable in TS TE FE AR B ) R S ZE AR 2 A
determining taxable profit BB E 31,945 32,695
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERZHIGER 2 M E (10,214) (5,168)
Tax effect of share of result of an associate ffﬁ—%ﬁﬁf%’& RERIMBE (347) (1,170)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REAMMEEE RS 2 M B A A
operating in other jurisdictions TRME & 600 1,613
Underprovision in prior years MAFERETE (1,002) (1,327)
Others Hh (446) 949
Taxation for the year RNEE 2 HIE (933) (1,445)
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No dividend was paid or proposed during 2012, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period (2011: Nil).

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to the

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

R-F——_FHERNIEZIRTRE -
B 2 ¥ 58 3R A SR IR R I - (AT
B(ZF——F:8)-

ARBHEEABESREAREEERTD
BT BB E

Loss attributable to owners of the Company FA{EstEFIEA N EEIE 2

for the purposes of basic and diluted loss KRRER AEILERE
per share

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E——fF
FTHERT FHET
(143,188) (206,643)

Number of shares

BROHAE
2012 2011
-5 —T——F

Number of ordinary shares for the purposes  FR{EFTE = ——F HREAEE &
of basic loss per share for 2012 and basic R —FEREAREEEEZ

and diluted loss per share for 2011 EgiliiE ¢E!

There was no potential ordinary share outstanding during the year

ended 31 December 2012.

The calculation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2011 had not assumed the conversion of the Company’s
then outstanding convertible notes as the potential ordinary shares

were anti-dilutive during the year ended 31 December 2011.

657,675,872 657,675,872

=

N E T ——F+=-A=1+—HILHF
B MERTEBEL B

=

AEEBEE—_T——F+-_HA=t+—HIt
FEBRESERR T BRELBAEAR
BE R ARME R 2 AR IR - TR
BT ——F+ZA=1+—HILFEZE
EEmRRkAEREETE-



cosT

At 1 January 2011

Currency realignment

Additions

Disposals

Disposal of subsidiaries

Write-off

Adjustment of cost with
contractor

Transfer from construction
in progress

Transferred to assets
held-for-sale

At 31 December 2011

Currency realignment

Additions

Disposals

Transferred from assets
held-for-sale

Transfer of hotel property
under construction to
hotel properties

At 31 December 2012

DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2011

Currency realignment

Provided for the year

Impairment loss recognised
in profit or loss

Eliminated on disposals

Eliminated on disposals of
subsidiaries

Eliminated on write-off

At 31 December 2011

Currency realignment

Transferred from asset
held-for-sale

Provided for the year

Impairment loss recognised
in profit or loss

Eliminated on disposals

At 31 December 2012

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2012

At 31 December 2011

AR
R=F——%-f-H
GilE

hE

ihE
HEHBRR
i
EEEHRRUA
BREREIR

SREREHEAE

WE——%
+-A=+-H

BERZ

WE

HE
BRARENELE
BREREENEZE
BENE
RZT-ZF+Z4
=t+-A

FERAE

R-F——%—H-H
MERE
AERRME
REERDHEBR

{H S
iH EM B R AR

S
RZF——%
+-A=f-A
HEEE
SREREHEEE

AERRR
REERZRERR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% =% — =41 =H=—+—HILFK&

Hotel
property
Hotel under
properties  construction
HK$'000 HK$'000
Note (@)
i3]
mEns  EERE
TAT THT
Kit(a)
1,484,844 264,911
74,543 =
8,797 395,178
1,568,184 660,089
2,559 -
= 162,331
822,420 (822,420)
2,393,163 =
224,651 -
15,300 -
51,245 =
291,196 -
647 -
44153 -
335,99 -
2,057,167 -
1,276,988 660,089

Furniture
and fixtures
HK$'000

BRR%E
TR

36,346
672
4527
(923)

40,622
29
1,826
(1,090)

41,387

24,384
247
3120

11,829

13327

Leasehold
improvements
HK$'000

g
EET]
FiEn

422,369
4923
34911
(124,022)
(10,957)

307,204
15
33,505
(129.873)

230,871

116,975
2,803
39,834

31,150
(29,449)

(8733)

152,580
12

25212
44,183
(83,224)

138,763

92,108

174,644

Motor
vehicles
HK$'000

nE

TR

6,662

(3727)

2939

3,024
187
882

(2,247)

2,049

890

2929

Office
equipment
and
machinery
HK$'000

BAZ
RERESR
TiEn

53,197
2,184
1,258

(3911)

(92)

52,636
37
2,060
(449)

54,614

8,012
1,986
2,837

(3,76&)

(32)

43,09
128

44,944

9,670

9,541

Vessels
HK$'000

]

T

5347

57
(4,442)

33,852

(32,72)

35939
1456
1,679

(1,048)
2,087

1,125
1,984

30,743

Construction
in progress
HK$'000

HEIE
TiEn

113,867

(62,79;)
(17,21)

(33,852)

Total
HK$'000

i

FiEL

2,385,554
82,571
447,015
(133,724)
(11,170)
(62,794)

(17,221)

(32,721)

2,657,504
2974
199,722
(135,139)

33,852

2,758,913

475,356
20,523
99,597

31,150
(35,060)

(8,786)
(62,794)
519,986

815

1,125
76,804

44,183
(86,407)

556,506

2,202,407

2,137,518
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The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum, after taking into
account of their estimate residual value.

Hotel properties (comprising ~ Over the shorter of the lease term of

PAEWZE - 25 R AR TR B TIRE R
FTRIBMEER  IREGEEA TN F R

land and buildings)

Furniture and fixtures

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles
Office equipment and
machinery

Vessels

35 to 40 years and 2.5%
10% - 20%
10% — 20% or the term of the lease,

if shorter

8.33% —20%
20%

5% - 8.33%

o
BIEE RREFH3FEE
(BELHRET) 40F52.5%

(A&REE BE)

REMREE
HEMERE

MAERE LR

10% - 20%

10% - 20% 3k &
FH(MBRREE

8.33% — 20%

20%

5% -8.33%

An analysis of the properties of the Group (other than the properties
amounting to HK$122,072,000 (2011: HK$125,548,000) set out in (c)

below) held at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Hotel
properties

BENE

2012
HKS'000
—E-CF
THx

Medium term leases in Hong Kong REBZREEL (fa)
(note a) 871,134

Medium term leases in the PRC R Bz R A

(notes b) (Pt7Eb) 1,063,961

1,935,095

REBREERPLERSMBE2WE
(P T X()& 5 2.122,072,000/ 70 (=&
——4F 1 125,548,000/ T ) W1 E KR 5N 5
IR CENE

Hotel property

under construction
EREENE

201 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T % = =T55%
TAL FEx TEL
- - 660,089
1,151,440 - =
1,151,440 - 660,089
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Notes:

(@ Included in hotel properties at the end of the reporting period
is a hotel property with a carrying value of approximately
HK$871,134,000 (2011: Nil) situated in Tai Kok Tsui, Hong Kong. The
hotel property has commenced business in July 2012.

(b) Included in hotel properties held under medium term leases in the
PRC of approximately HK$1,063,961,000 (2011: HK$1,151,440,000)
is a hotel property with a carrying value of approximately
HK$217,017,000 (2011: HK$243,778,000) of which a subsidiary of
the Company has been granted the right to operate and manage
the hotel in Guangzhou, the PRC for a period from January 1987 to
January 2017, and subject to certain conditions to be fulfilled by the
subsidiary, the operating period may be extended for a further period
of 20 years.

(c) Included in hotel properties at the end of the reporting period
is a hotel property with a carrying value of approximately
HK$122,072,000 (2011: HK$125,548,000) situated in Luoyang, the
PRC in which the Group holds the property right. The land use rights
of the hotel property is currently held by Luoyang Power Supply
Bureau, a non-controlling shareholder of the subsidiary holding the
hotel property. Pursuant to a land use rights agreement entered into
between Luoyang Power Supply Bureau and the subsidiary on 15
April 1999 (before the Group acquired the said subsidiary in 2004),
Luoyang Power Supply Bureau agreed to permit the said subsidiary to
use the land upon which the hotel property is now situated for a term
commencing from April 1999 to April 2049 for hotel use.

Due to the unsatisfactory results of some of the budget hotels in the
Group's hotel operation in the PRC, the Group has disposed of certain
leasehold improvements and furniture and fixtures, relating to those
budget hotels operations during the year ended 31 December 2012
to certain independent third parties and closed down the relevant
operations. The carrying amounts of these assets disposed of were
approximately HK$45,746,000 (2011: HK$94,573,000) with cash
proceeds of approximately HK$20,679,000, resulting in a loss on
disposal of approximately HK$25,067,000 (2011: HK$22,667,000).

() ERHEREZBEMERE—EES
A 3 1H BR M {E 49871,134,0008 7T (=
T——F ) ZHEYE - -ZBIEY
ERN T —FLARREEES-

b)) RHEBEULBBHBEHNEE ZH
1,063,961,000/8 L (=T —— 4 :
1,151,440,0008 7T ) B /5 W # B & —
PEERE{E #49217,017,0008 T (=&
—— % : 243,778,000 7T ) Z B E
¥ -MARAZHERRERTZME
AR BEEMMZBEZ &4 RER
W FHRE-NANEF—AE=ZE—+t
F—ALlL MEETHHBARATE
RZAGHRBRT  EE R E— SR
iy ks S

(0 ZAEBERSRPEREHEWEES Y
BEMEBIER —EREERBTRE
B49122,072,0008 L (=& —— % :
125,548,000 70 ) 2 BIE W% - ZOBIE
Mz T AR R A EIE
M2 B AR 2 IEER IR IE ST
BERBFA - REBBEMEERRZW
BARIKR—AANFEA+RA (BAE
EEE-_STMFEWREZNBARR)
R THFE R ER S BB EER
BBt LB A R FE R ZEED
¥R 2 i FEHBE—NANNE
MARE-TMAFMA L LEBRE
R

F A AN 5% B JE BT 3B 0 iz 7 R B 2 A
FERVE I AR IR B AL ER
BE_T——F+-_A=+—HILFE
AEFBYLE=ALERZSFEERR
EEBERZETHENEREURR
MREE WHERBALCEER -Z5E
& & E 2 R € 58 4 /45,746,000
gL (= ZF ——%F 194,573,000/ 70) * R
£ P18 #9/520,679,0008 7T B M E4£
& E5184925,067,000% 0 (=T ——F:
22,667,000/ L) °
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In view that some of the budget hotels in the PRC are making recurring
losses, and are projected to incur losses in the future periods, and
with the weakening Chinese economy, the directors have reviewed
the recoverability of the relevant carrying amounts of the Group’s
leasehold improvements incurred by the Group in respect of those
budget hotels which are leased by the Group under operating
leases amounting to HK$50,548,000 (2011: HK$109,384,000) and
the related operating rights amounting to HK$34,081,000 (2011:
HK$49,112,000) classified as intangible assets in note 21 at the end
of the reporting period. The recoverable amounts of the assets of the
cash generating units (“CGU") which are represented by each of the
budget hotels have been determined on the basis of the value in use
of each of the CGUs. The discount rate in measuring the amounts of
value in use was 14% (2011: 12%). The directors determined that the
carrying amounts of certain of the budget hotel CGUs exceeded their
recoverable amounts. Accordingly, an impairment loss of approximately
HK$44,183,000 (2011: HK$31,150,000) has been recognised in
respect of leasehold improvements and approximately HK$34,081,000
(2011: HK$10,094,000) in respect of operating rights of the CGUs.

The directors have also reviewed the recoverability of the carrying
amounts of the Group’s hotel properties (other than budget hotels
disclosed above) with reference to their fair values at 31 December
2012 and 2011, which have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by Asset Appraisal Limited (“Asset Appraisal”),
an independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group. Asset Appraisal is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation was arrived at using the comparison method, whereby
comparison based on prices realised or market prices of comparable
properties is made (Note). No impairment loss has been recognised in
respect of the Group’s hotel properties for both years as their fair values
determined in this manner were estimated to be higher than their
carrying amounts.

Note: Under the comparison method, transacted prices (prices realised)
or, if not available, asked prices (market prices) of comparable
properties is made. Comparable properties of similar size, character
and location are analysed and adjustments are made to take account
of the respective advantages and disadvantages of each property,
and also the possible outcome of the negotiation from asked prices
to transacted prices, in order to arrive at a reasonable comparison of
capital values.

SRR IR D AL A R B 2 A AL JE 8315 4
B EE - W IE ST R R EA R I 48 BUET 4R
MEPELEESS EFERNE2HRHEE
RERFNAEEREWERE ZERE
AeEzAlERE SEEEWESR
BEHEAEEBRECEHERE 2 K
7B J550,548,0008 0 (=& — —F:
109,384,000/ 7T ) R A KT 72170 28 B &
& E 7 1B R % 134,081,000/ T (=
T ——14:49,112,0008 70) B - & &K
EAREFRERZRESELSEN ([Re
EXBEM]DEEZATRESEIRES
ReEXBUZFREEET T2
BEESHEZNMBAER14% (ZF——
F:12%) FEZEWESR THEBEIRE
HeEABU 2 RESBEBHETKE
R Al AEBEERZEREELES
T HEMFERE REEEBRRES
B9 Bl #144,183,0008 7 (Z T ——4F:
31,150,000/ 7t ) & £934,081,000/% 7T
(ZZF——%:10,094,000# 7T ) °

EXC2RAEEEEYE (LXRAKRE
ZEEWRERINR _F——FR_F
——FTZA=+—HZATFEE &
ZEBEME L RE SR P WEIZE -
BERATEELHEAKEYEBELS
T ABRERMGE P HREEENEREM
BRAR (THhBEEENE]NZBE
TZAEEE -PHEEENELSTBA
EMBEEE HEEEER RAOANA
SRR U REEZER -EH
METMEMLLBORER EPEATLRY
XZBEBRERIMEFLR (HE) -
REEME AL A EE 2 2 FEER
SAERNERESRE MAKERMEFE
15 BB R ) R RO (E R 1E o

e RIFLEOR ALLBYMEZKRE
(BEERBER) X (MEXSE)EH
B (ME)ETLR - BE SR
BERAZ AL BMERE AN - L pt
EMENBL ZBRIARNE HERER
EBRRREZ AJREAERIFRHE  JAZE
HEXNMEZRELR-
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HK$'000
FHT
FAIR VALUE NP EE

At 1 January 2011 N_E——F—A—H 294,493
Currency realignment B EFE 7,839
Additions NE 778
Eliminated upon disposal of a subsidiary HE—RITB A AR H (45,253)
Increase in fair value recognised in the profit or loss ~ RIBZfER 2 A FEEE M 13,543

At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 R-E——F+-_A=+—HRK
—E——-#%—H—H 271,400
Currency realignment KEEFE 1,573
Additions NE 41,056
Increase in fair value recognised in the profit or loss ~ RIBZFFER Z A FEEE M 9,971
At 31 December 2012 WRZB——F+=-A=+—H 324,000

The Group's investment properties represent a completed complex for
commercial use, which is situated on medium-term land use right in the

PRC.

The fair value at 31 December 2012 and 2011 has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Norton Appraisals
Limited (“Norton Appraisals”), an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group. Norton Appraisals is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at using
the direct comparison approach which considers the relevant market
comparables as available in the locality as at the date of valuation and

also consider its term of operation up to 15 October 2023.

The Group's property interest held under operating lease to earn rental
or for capital appreciation purpose is measured using the fair value

model and is classified and accounted for as investment property.

AEBZREMFIEC ERZIBBEER
18 IR B2 B i A o

R-B——ER-—T——F+-A=+—
Z AT BAEKHBREBNERE B
AEARBEEMEMERELRTHEERA
Al ([ BRG] Rz BT 2 EE
BE ETHEBEIEABSISMET Y
B -MEEEER ROMA LB
EEUMEEE KR - FEMGETER
HELBZER BERELBEZREMR
B B BT 15 2 A T35 AT & th B &

Wi R=ZE-_=F+A+RALZE

Kkm

eall

ARBEAKERERAARDESRIEER
AFHERZRZMFEERTER R FEER
BAE YOBRRARIBREME-
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Cost of investment in an associate R—REE R R 2 RE KR
Unlisted investments EEMRE
Share of post-acquisition losses FE(R U iE 12 518
Amount due from an associate JE U — Bk & X RIFRIA
Less: Share of post-acquisition losses that are & : JE/G B BIRE K A 2
in excess of the cost of investment Wi ig 1% &5 18

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest free and
repayable upon written notice given from the Company. In the opinion
of the directors, the whole balance due from an associate at 31
December 2012 and 2011 will not be repaid within the next twelve

months and accordingly is classified as non-current.

Particulars of the Group's associate as at 31 December 2012 and 2011

are as follows:

Issued and

Form of Place of paid up

Name of associate business structure incorporation share capital

‘000

BRTR

BENRER FHEBREA LM AR L 4 B HRRE

T

Business Action Holdings Limited  Limited liability British Virgin Us$1
("Business Action”) company Islands

Business Action Holdings Limited ~ AR EE A A EBEARES (EF

([Business Action |)

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-——fF —T——fF
FET FHET

4 4

4 4

33,996 41,085
(2,100) (7,089)
31,896 33,996

U —FBE AR FRAEER 2R
ARARBZHEMBAREE -EFR
R R_F-—_FR_F——F+_H
ST RZEERK—RHEQRERE

ERART —EARIHEE HED
BRIFRE-
AEBEBZBERRN_FT——_FR_F
——F+ - A=+—BZHBOT:

Proportion of
issued capital held

by the Group Principal activities
2012 2011
AEERER
BRTEALE TEEK
—E-Cf —F——F
45% 45%  Investment holding
45% 45%  KREEK



The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

associate is set out below:

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net liabilities

Group's share of net assets of an associate
Total turnover

Total loss for the year

Group's share of loss of an associate

for the year

Cost of unlisted investments in jointly
controlled entities
Share of post-acquisition losses

Less: Impairment losses recognised

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% =% — =41 =H=—+—HILF&

N

2012
HK$'000
—E—_—F
FHET
BEERE 107,615
BEBE (120,498)
BEFE (12,883)
AEBEGE—FREEQAREEFE 4
R 1,444
NFEE BB (4,039)
AEEREFEE—KEEQFEE
(2,100)
2012
HK$'000
—E—_F
FHET
REREHEE 2 IELTIREKA
36,927
(G EER E1E (15,165)
B BERERZBEEE (4,712)
17,050

AEBEBERNR UM BERBEHSIM
-

2011
HK$'000
—ZET——F
FHT
110,781
(111,510)

(729)

389

(9,466)

(7,089)

2011
HK$'000
—ZT——%F
FTT

36,927
(15,165)
(4,712)

17,050
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As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group had interests in the RZE——FR_F——F+=-A=+—
following jointly controlled entities: H AEERTHXEZEGEEESE
=
Place of Proportion of

dissolution of the entity, which is still under processing at the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements.

incorporation Class of registered capital
Name of entity Form of entity and operation shares held held by the Group Principal activity
2012 2011
A L K AEEREZ
ERER BEEKA BEBE Frds R 43 48 Bl EMEARLE TEER
—E-—F —T——fF
Sinomatrix Limited (“Sinomatrix”)  Incorporated British Virgin Ordinary 50% 50%  Investment holding
Islands (Note a)
Sinomatrix Limited ( [ Sinomatrix ) £E REARRES AR 50% 50%  REER
(MisFa)
Tangula Railtours Limited Sino-foreign PRC Registered capital 49% 49%  Inactive
cooperative (Note b)
enterprise
EhRREIEERAA HOMEER S HE At AR 49% 49% LEEX
(PizEDb)
Notes: Bk
On 25 October 2010, the Group entered into an agreement with an a. RIZE—ZF+HA-+HA AKEHE
independent third party and the agreement entitled the counterparty — BB E=FRIN D HE &
to purchase one out of two shares of Sinomatrix, a wholly-owned H T 28 8 F 5 #E A B B Sinomatrix
subsidiary of the Group, for a consideration of US$2,200,000 (BRAEEZ2EWBAR) M KRR
(approximately equivalent to HK$17,050,000). The transaction was P EF —hk - K {E7%2,200,000% T
completed in June 2011 and the Group has retained a 50% interest (F8E 7 4917,050,0005% 7T ) ° Z B R
in Sinomatrix. Accordingly, Sinomatrix and its subsidiaries (" Sinomatrix SR_T——FXATK MAKE
Group”) ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company and Sinomatrix RE R SinomatrixZ 50% 1 &= © A It »
became a jointly controlled entity of the Company from that day. Sinomatrix & E Hf & 2 7] ([ Sinomatrix
Sinomatrix is holding a property located in Kedun Plaza, Nanning, S TBAARRATIZHBAR M
Guangxi through a 70% owned subsidiary. Sinomatrixi &% B K AN A 7 2 FERE
I 28 - Sinomatrixi® B — E# A 70%
Z BB AR R A R E PR ZEKedun
PlazaZ ) % °
The Board of Directors of Tangula Railtours Limited agreed the b. FEaNEEINEBRATESERAE

NREVBREL - AR BN 4R & MR RR
BEHEE B MR
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The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

interests in the jointly controlled entities attributable to the Group's

interests thereon, which are accounted for using the equity method is

set out below:

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Income recognised in profit or loss

Expenses recognised in profit or loss

Equity securities

Unlisted shares, at cost

Less: Amounts shown under current assets

(note b)

Amounts shown under non-current assets

B RER Z WA

tE
RIBEERZFAX

PR 3E 55

JE MR A AE

O RBEEE TR

(Pff3ED)

FRBEER NAIRTER

BRAASER L RES]

2 Wt 2 B

ERBEHINET AEBRETEEZ

A R E

2012
HK$'000
—E—_—F

16,440
(56)

(16,497)

2012
HK$'000
—E—_—F

FH

63,877

63,877

2011
HK$'000
—ET——F

FHIT

(29,777)

2011
HK$'000
—F—F
TERT

120,136

(56,259)

63,877
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Particulars of the Group’s major available-for-sale investments as at 31

December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Paid up
Place of capital/ Proportion of nominal
establishment/ registered  value of issued capital held
Name of entity incorporation capital by the Group
‘000 2012 2011

BRRE/ FEERAZERT
REZE L/ SR A EMER RAEEz LR

RZBE——FRZE——F+_A=+—

fr =-%-=f —Z%——-% Z%--f C-T——f ZB-Zf _—F——F

BNESHEREERAR PRC RMBS,000 25% 25%
("EMBR") (Note a)

BNESHEREERAR :F AR 18,0007 25% 25%
(TEMER]) (Fita)

More Cash Ltd. British Virgin Islands [y 6% 6%

More Cash Ltd. LBUBRES =T 6% 6%

HKWOT (BVI) Limited ("HKWOT") British Virgin Islands US$0.1 - 10%
(Note b)

HKWOT (BV) Limited (HKWOT|) ~ KB#BRES 0.1ET - 10%
(k)

The above unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by private entities established in the PRC or
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. They are measured at cost
less impairment at end of the reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured

reliably.

B AEEzEZrHEEREFBN
T
Interest attributable
to the Group Carrying amount Principal activities
2012 2011 2012 201
HK$'000 HK$'000
AEEELER RAEE TEXHE
TER TAL
25% 25% 31,232 31,232 Property investment
25% 25% 31,232 3122 NERA
6% 6% 32,645 32,645 Property investment
6% 6% 32,645 32645 MERE
- 10% - 56,259 Travel and related
services
- 10% - 56,259 i RAAERS
63,877 120,136

Ltk ERIRE R P B SN R
ARESEMR L2 ABRETZIFE
MRABHRZRE ANZEREZAE
NP EBEMRAHEERN ARAREERE
TREAI ST BEABATEE  MZER
BN 2HRMEREIZKAERRETE -
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At 31 December 2012 and 2011, the directors of the Company took
into consideration of the market values of the properties held by their
investees E/#R 5% and More Cash Ltd. and considered that they could

recover fully the carrying value of the investment.

Notes:

a.  Though a subsidiary of the Group holds a 25% interest in f& /1| 5 =%,
the directors considered that the Group cannot exercise significant
influence on the financial and operating policies of E M $£= and
accordingly, it is classified as an available-for-sale investment.

b.  On 27 February 2012, the Group completed the disposal of its 10%
equity interest in HKWOT to the holding company of HKWOT, C-Travel
International Limited (“C-Travel International”), for a consideration of
US$9,440,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$73,296,000, net of
relevant expenses) which was paid as to US$9,180,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$71,296,000, net of relevant expenses) by way of
cash at completion and as to the balance of US$260,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,000,000) on the first anniversary of the
completion date. The Group had previously disposed of 90% equity
interest in HKWOT to C-Travel International in May 2010. The balance
was previously stated at its cost and this transaction has resulted in the
Group recognising a gain of approximately HK$17,037,000 in profit
or loss.

n=

E—CFERZE——FtA=1T—

B ARREEEEIWREDRIEME
% & More Cash Ltd #FA 2 WEMEE R
A EHROERHIEE ZEREE:.

B & :

HAREE KB R RRFAEBEMR
525% 2 HEa  MEERRAEE TR
HEMBREZMBEREEBRITRE

TEN WEMNRRDEIBER A
AHHERE-

RZE—ZFZA=Z++tH K&
B A [AIHKWOT,Z 2% A R C-Travel
International Limited ([C-Travel
International | ) i} & AN 5= B FAHKWOT
Z10% % A= #E 25 - X B 729,440,0003
JT (FBE 1 4973,296,00078 7T ($0BR 4R
) ) o X {EHEF9,180,000% T
(B 4971,296,0005% 7T (1B 48
M) )RR AR & X ek
260,000 7t (18 & 7 492,000,000
TC) R TERK B B M — B FER o AN &
BRRER - —ZF A AMC-Travel
International tH & HKWOT 2 90 % % 74k
s BRI RIBEIRKAET R %
BERX5BHAEERN B R ELD
17,037,000/ T °
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Hotel
Railway operating
intangibles agreements Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEBLEE I AR &5t
FET FHET FHT
COST A
At 1 January 2011 R—Z—F—HF—H 352,302 190,665 542,967
Disposals k- - (7,746) (7,746)
Write-off vz (352,302) - (352,302)
At 31 December 2011, 1 January RZE——%F
2012 and 31 December 2012 +ZA=+—8"
—T——F-A-HkK
—EF——F
+TZA=+—H - 182,919 182,919
AMORTISATION AND S RORE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2011 R=ZZE——F—H—H 352,302 129,107 481,409
Charge for the year REFEZH - 5,115 5,115
Eliminated on disposal I 5 IR 3 8 - (415) (415)
Eliminated on write-off S B 8K (352,302) - (352,302)
Impairment loss recognised REF D BRRMEEE
in the year - 10,094 10,094
At 31 December 2011 and R-ZE——%F
1 January 2012 +ZA=+—HK
—E——"Ff—H—H - 143,901 143,901
Charge for the year REFEZH = 4,937 4,937
Impairment loss recognised REEERRBREERE
in the year - 34,081 34,081
At 31 December 2012 W=t
+=—A=+—H - 182,919 182,919
CARRYING VALUES IRE{E
At 31 December 2012 RZB——%F
+=A=+—8H - - -
At 31 December 2011 R-T——%F

+=A=+—8 = 39,018 39,018
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The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such intangible

assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

Railway intangibles 16 years
Hotel operating agreements 6 years to 15 years

Railway intangibles comprised exclusive rights, trademark and affiliation
agreement. The exclusive rights entitled the Group to conduct an
exclusive tour train service related business on the Qinghai-Tibet
Railway in the PRC, which include conducting tour related services,
engaging in food and beverage service and lodging business, for a
contractual period of 16 years from the date of commencement of
the railway operation. The trademark allowed the Group to use the
brand “Tangula” and “Tangula Express” for railway operation while
the affiliation agreement was with an international hotel management
chain which provided hospitality services on the train and enabled
the Group to enhance its brand attractiveness of the train operations
and to capture the potential customers base of the international hotel
management chain. The railway intangibles were fully written off in

prior year.

The hotel operating agreements entitle the Group to manage and
operate certain budget hotels exclusively in Macau, Wuyishan and

Foushan, the PRC for a period of 6 to 15 years (2011: 6 to 15 years).

A B EERREEBRAIEASEH-
uxﬁ/ﬂﬂ/éﬁfﬂkﬁ ?KgZEJ/XTEJEF/HH%
8

HRELEE 164
G S e 6 E 154

HREVEEREBREN BENEE
ek - BREFE T AN EEAER - 7 EER
FIREEE At 2 tRFEHREE
Fh B 7 L 8 B 2 R £ 88 K 0 PR T AR R 22
% BIEEEIREARERY 2 RRH R
EEER - BIREANEE A R EKEE R
53] TTanguIaJ K FTanguIa Express | G2 -
Bt B ok 0 B — i SH BB S &
REIEI  Z AR TIRYIE FIR R AR
T o Bt R 175 i i AN Ok [ M58 51| 2R 58 h
25| - WA AR EEBEEE B R A A
ZEERPER BREFEEDNESF
ZTE A

BIE S S GHRE TAEEES  BRER
R &Ry PR R R ILE TEE
ABE RE6EISF (ZT——F:62
154F) °
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For the purpose of impairment testing, the hotel operating agreement
intangible assets has been allocated to the CGU of Asia Times
Limited (“Asia Times"”), Square Inn Hotel Management Limited
(Macau) (“Square Inn Macau”) and Sky Victory Resources Limited
(“Sky Victory”). For the year ended 31 December 2011, there was no
impairment made for Sky Victory as it had been disposed of during that

year.

The recoverable amounts of the remaining CGUs have been determined
on the basis of value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation are those regarding the discount rates, growth
rates and expected changes to revenue and direct cost. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past practices and

expectations of future changes in the market.

In view that some of the budget hotels are making losses, and are
projected to incur losses in future periods, and with the weakening
China economy, the directors have reviewed the recoverability of the
carrying amounts of the Group's intangible assets relating to Asia
Times and Square Inn Macau. The impairment review was based on
cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets of 5
years approved by management and forecast over the exclusive licence
period of operations, using a discount rate of 14.0% (2011: 12.0%).

Impairment loss recognised during the year is set out in note 16.

RETRER S RS KL SR
AED DB EAsia Times Limited ([Asia
Times|) - FEEZEAEEEEFRAF
(&P (THEMEZREPI]) KSky Victory
Resources Limited ([Sky Victory |) 2 3R &
B BN - BASky VictoryEREZE—F
——F+ZA=+—RALFEALE K
b £ 5t Sky VictoryfE Hi 8 (&

HTREELEM RO SBEIAERE
BEREEFH AEERABEEIEERIA
BRITEE ERER NIAMWA R BEK
REBNERER o BT E (L B BRI L E A5
PFrIRE - URRIBR IS H RS EE BN
ZEBEEEENL URZEREESL
Bz FERR - BREETDRIBITEER
TER AR - WA R B KA B THRIE
BETISEI R TSR EE 2 TR RK
o

ER D A EREE SRS B R - W TEER
REAFEHS B EEE - I EP R EESS
EFE RN AKEF#Asa Timesk 7 [E
MR 7 &FEEREE 2 1R E R
B oREEMIREEREME 2 &
hEMBREEZREREBARBREE
RRHRAN IR RETER - £H14.0%
(Z2——F:120% ) FREXEH -1
FAERZ BERBBENH 6 -

puly
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- HEF ZH=F—HIEFEE

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB-——F —T——fF
FET FHET
471 788
27,073 27,073
11,160 =
12,100 5,000
50,804 32,861

Rental deposits and prepaid rental for hotel JREJE& & HBefe RBMNES
operating agreements (Note a) (MfzEa)

Rental deposit (Note b) HeHe (HiZb)

Investment deposit (Note c) BEZS (M)

Other Hh

Notes: Bt 5 -

The amounts represent rental deposit and prepaid rental paid for hotel
operating agreements. The rental deposits are fully refundable upon
the end of the lease term. The hotel operating agreements entitle the
Group to manage and operate certain hotels exclusively in the PRC for
a period of 3 to 9 years (2011: a period of 6 to 10 years).

The amount represents 6-month rental deposit paid for the lease of
the hotel property of Rosedale on the Park.

The amounts represent deposit paid to an independent third party
for acquiring hotel operating agreements for hotel property in
Guangzhou. This deposit will be used to offset the consideration for
such acquisition.

The inventories were carried at cost and represent principally food,

beverages and general stores which are to be utilised in the ordinary

course of operations.

(b)

e3t]
&M

ZERBERBESCEREAB T 2A
SR kENEE HeFESNHEE
R ERERE BELEHBER T
AEEEFN BREERLEHEET
BIE - BE3EIF (=T ——F: B
6E10%F) °

FZEFIRERBERNBIBE 2B IEY
FHEENZANEAEEME -

& SRIEFE PR NE [E Y % 2 BB
E&%WJR&EH BEIE=ZF 2R
© o ZIRE K AEEEZKIE 2 KB

SLARKATER B2 R A B EBKBIZD
ZRm &k —RAme
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In February 2012, the Group completed the disposal of its 13.5%
equity interest in and amount due from an investee, Ocean Champion
Investments Limited, at a consideration of HK$12,300,000 to an

independent third party. No gain or loss arose from this disposal.

Trade receivables E 5 BRI
Other receivables (Note) H b Uk BR 3 (B 3E)

Total trade and other receivables

The Group allows credit period of up to 30 days to certain customers.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period which

approximated the respective revenue recognition dates.

0 - 30 days 0Z30H

31 - 60 days 31£60H
61 — 90 days 61£290H
Over 90 days HBiE90H

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed the
potential customer’s credit quality and defined credit limits by customer.
Limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a year, and the Group
reviews the repayment history of receivables by each customer with
reference to the payment terms stated in contracts to determine the
recoverability of a trade receivable. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, 64% (2011: 65%) of the trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have good credit quality at the end of the

reporting period with reference to past settlement history.

B 5 M EAMEWARK AR

RZE—ZF A AEETKF—F
B E =7 HEHREIRE QR ROcean
Champion Investments LimitedZ 13.5%
RAERREWRZAR ZRIE KER
12,300,000/ 7T ° 7% I8 th & I % 2= 4 (E ]

?E\ S o

BX

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—s-—% —T——%F
FTHERT FT
18,995 10,805
35,006 53,415
54,001 64,220

AEBGETETEPZBRERAZEI0
B AT RE 5 RBUIRRN 2 5 R
REZAH (HARKARREHEE)
25 ZFREE DT

2012 2011
HK$000 HK$'000
= e —E——%
TERT THETT
12,105 6,983
2,647 2,244
1,639 816
2,604 762
18,995 10,805

REBEZNEAFHELA  BrHEER
FzZEREER YBEREFPZEER
B RPERZBRESEFRN A M
AEB2BA DM 2GRS 84
BEFEERUWRR 2 LE NEEESE
YRR TR ERE ARREERR
S2RPAEZBELE RERPEREYL
KRB ARBREZ264%E 5 B RK
(ZF——F:65% ) AERIFEEL R
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Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$6,890,000 (2011:
HK$3,822,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

31 -60 days 31£260H
61 — 90 days 61£290H
Over 90 days A0 H
Total #ET

The Group performed assessment on individual trade receivables and

no allowance was recognised for both years.

Balance at beginning of the year REV 2 B84

Write off during the year F R

Eliminated upon disposal of subsidiaries o 5 BB A R R 8
Balance at end of the year RERZER

Note: Included in the other receivables balances at 31 December 2012
were prepaid rentals and utilities deposits to certain independent
third parties in total of HK$20,580,000 in relation to hotels
operating in the PRC (2011: HK$35,906,000).

AEBCZEIREWEREHBELK
[ 546,890,000 T (=& — — 4 :
3,822,000 7)) 2 BEHEWEF -2 FE
SREWESFR 2 RBLARFEBEH  BX
SENES L ERREBERE  RELE
AEERRZSE HRREREEERT
mELASAEY WAIREABESFE K
SEN R RS AR E EER SR

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000

= —ET——%
TR TR
2,647 2,244
1,639 816
2,604 762
6,890 3,822

AEEGFEERE S RURR  TREL
8] F E AR A

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E--fF —T——f
TET THET

- 2,577

- (1,082)

- (1,495)

fist: —T——F+-_A=+—RAzHMfE
WERTE A SR B IR R P B 2 B JE 575
MEMETBYE=FzBEFHAE R
KEHE A ££20,580,0008 T (= F
——%F : 35,906,000/ 7T ) °
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Equity securities in unlisted investment funds MRIEFEMEEES Z R AFEFH

(Note) (BFEE)
Listed securities EmES
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REBE LT ZIRAE S

Note:  As at 31 December 2011, the amount represented the investment
in an unlisted private investment fund which mainly invested in
listed securities. The fair value was established by reference to the
price quoted by the fund administrator. In the current year, the
Group redeemed fully the investment funds and the changes in fair
value of investments held for trading at redemption date comparing
to that at 31 December 2011 is recognised in profit or loss.

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market interest rates of
0.01% (2011: 0.01%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits at 31
December 2012 carried prevailing market interest rate of 0.01% (2011:
0.01%) per annum and were pledged for banking facilities used by
the Group. Included in the pledged bank deposits is an amount of
approximately HK$11,780,000 (2011: HK$14,933,000) being pledged
for a long-term bank borrowing, and accordingly, the amount is

classified as non-current.

CES

RITAE

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-——fF —T——fF
FET FHET

- 15,468

290 214

290 15,682

RZT——F+=A=+—H" %K
BIEN—HEERER EMEFZIE
I AREESZIRE - R FEE
N2EE ST AFTREREE -
FE - AEEE2EELREES
MAMER B ERHER S RB 2 IRER
FEER-_F——F+-A=+—A
ZHEEETIERER

BIBRBITHIHENZE0.01% (=F

——F:001%)itE - =T —=—F+=A

==
FE0.01%:t B (=T ——4F:001%) °

H 2z B BRI IR TS E

Mz ECERRITERIAKEFAEA

RITBEZ W -EEBBRITERERE

—%$#911,780,0008 T (=T — —
14,933,000/ 7T) 2 X E - TR HAER 1T E

B2 BZeWEDBRIERD -
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In June 2011, the directors of the Company resolved to dispose of
a vessel (“Vessel”) and started negotiations with several interested
parties. Accordingly, the assets attributable to the Vessel have been
classified as assets held for sale and are separately presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2011.
Due to the weakening China economy, the interested parties previously
identified would not be proceeding with the purchase. During the year,
the directors have given careful consideration on the probability to
dispose of the Vessel and have concluded that it is not highly probable
for the Vessel to be disposed of within the next twelve months. Thus,
the Vessel was reclassified from assets classified as held for sale to
properties, plant and equipment at 31 December 2012. Depreciation
expense amounting to HK$1,984,000 was recognised in profit or loss in
the current year. The Vessel is included in the Group's hotel operations

for segment reporting purposes (see note 7).

The directors have reviewed the recoverability of the carrying amount
of the Vessel at the date on which it ceases to be classified as asset
held for sale and the end of the reporting period. The recoverable
amount is estimated based on the recent market prices of comparable
vessels with similar specifications. The directors determined that,
with reference to a valuation carried by Jones Lang Lasalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group, the recoverable amount exceeds

the carrying amount and no impairment loss has been recognised.

RZZE——F R A RAAAESH AL
EHEME((ZME)EHRBEZEE
EATERER -FL ZMERIGEE
EoBARELEEE WE_T——F
TZA=t—B2EEUBRRAREAS
25 - SR REESESS TRENE
ZERINA RS GERTHE -FN &
EEREZRENEZMEZ TR M
BRAEMETKAERARTZEAR
S -Al ZMEER-_T——F+=
RA=+—HHIEAREHEEEENS
BAME BERZEBE - BERAFEELE
= HERITE R 1,984,00087T « ZMER
AAREEBERE  UMESERER
#w (RMIEE7)

EECEHZMERNTEBARELE
EEZARERRERT ZREEZ TR
EIF2/E - AT E S B2 IRR KB 2 7]
EEMEIAMELE EFHTE &
SIREAEEVEMEBIAEREE
HEMPERTEEFERERFRAR
ETZME TRESEBLRAE B
I FEFERRE 1A -
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Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of
approximately HK$9,990,000 (2011: HK$10,287,000) and the aged
analysis of the trade payables presented based on the invoice date at

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0Z30A8

31 -60 days 31£60H
61 — 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days A0 H

The credit period on purchases of goods ranged from 30 to 60
days. Included in other payables are payable for hotel supplies
of approximately HK$925,000 (2011: HK$2,023,000), advance
receipt from customers of approximately HK$8,935,000 (2011:
HK$3,273,000), deposit received for rented premises of approximately
HK$18,989,000 (2011: HK$11,334,000), payable for hotel
construction amounting to approximately HK$11,322,000 (2011:
HK$31,416,000), accrual for administrative expenses of approximately
HK$51,348,000 (2011: HK$58,275,000) and interest payables on other
borrowings of approximately HK$2,665,000 (2011: HK$2,777,000).

The loan from a related company, ITC Management Limited (“ITC
Management”) was unsecured, bearing interest rate at Hong Kong
Dollar Prime Rate plus 2% per annum and was fully repaid during the
year. ITC Management is related to Company as the holding company

of ITC Management has significant influence over the Company.

FIANE 5 REAMEMERZXIBRER
£0#79,990,0008 7T 2 B S EMNIRR (=T
——%:10,287,000/&7T,) - & ZFETHR
FN 2 AR A IR 5 B B R 2 AR
DT :

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——F —E——F
FTHERT FHET
4,781 5,083
2,018 2,863
1,687 1,427
1,504 914
9,990 10,287

BEZREHN T30 E60R - &
EAERBEBERDEMNRELY
925,000/ 7T (= ZF ——4%:2,023,000
B IT) -~ TR 5 WERE P FRIE 498,935,000
B (=T ——4:3,273,0008 L) »
REEWED WET® 418,989,000
T (=T ——%:11,334,000% 75)
B JE R % T AR TE 491,322,000 7T
(ZZ——%:31,416,0008 70) ~ FEf+
TR B 4951,348,0008 T (=8 ——
£ :58,275,0008 ) R B G B 2 &
4 F) B 492,665,000/ 7L (=T — —4F :
2,777,000 75) °

RE—KBEAQRITC Management
Limited ([ITC Management|) Z E& A
EER RBTHREBF R MEFR XR2E
AECWERAFERZEERE - ARITC
ManagementZ 3% A &) A] 6 AN A Rl 1T{&E
BBAFE N MUTC ManagementE2 7N A 7]
HEAE-
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e — 2K BE A FITC ManagementZ 5K
BEER 2B RANFRBEEE-

The amount due to a related company, ITC Management, was

unsecured, non-interest bearing and was fully repaid during the year.

Effective interest rate

Carrying amount

Eagiks REE
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-C-f —E——F —E-C-F 2
+=A=t+-AH +=A=+-~8 t=A=t-H +=A=+-8
TER FET
Bank borrowings BITEE
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC") REARRIT (THEARR
Benchmark Deposit rate times 11 EHREEFREF120%
120% secured RMB loan FERARKER 8.0% 8.0% 2,963 3,703
Hong Kong Interbank Offered rate BEERTRAZERE ([FBRT
("HIBOR") plus 2.4% secured HKD REFE]) M2 AEBHEA
loan BILER 2.8% 2.7% 220,000 230,000
HIBOR plus 1.75% secured HKD loan BB R1TRER S MM1.75E
BEMELER 22% 2.0% 435,000 405,000
657,963 638,703
Other borrowings HittE &
Higher of HIBOR plus 2.5% or 3% BBRITRERSM
unsecured HKD loan 25EH3E (UAREE
RE)BEEMETEN 3.0% - 250,000 -
Fixed interest rate [E]E | = a4
unsecured HKD loan BILER 10.0% 10.0% 8,148 8,148
Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate plus 2% /St EEF R M2E
unsecured HKD loan BEMETLER 7.0% 7.0% 10,000 59,992
268,148 68,140
926,111 706,843
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31.12.2012 31.12.2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B——fF —E——F
+=A=+-A +=-A=+-A
FET FAT
Carrying amount repayable*: AHEBZREE:
Within one year —F R 32,889 78,880
More than one year but B —FETEAMF
not exceeding two years 208,222 16,963
More than two years but AT ETBARF
not exceeding five years 250,000 206,000
491,111 301,843
Carrying amount of the bank loan that HAERERERGEXER—FRA
contains a repayable on demand clause EE 2 RITE R ZREE
and due within one year 435,000 =
Carrying amount of the bank loan that are W IFR 2 REGL R —FANEE
not repayable within one year from the BEERERERBE ZRITER
end of the reporting period that contains Gl RrBEaR) 2REE
a repayment demand clause (shown under
current liabilities) - 405,000
926,111 706,843
Less: Amount due within one year BB AR AE L —FREIERIEA
shown under current liabilities (467,889) (483,880)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities %! &3R8 & & 2 #8 458,222 222,963
*  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in * ERNRIEBAERGEE . EER

the loan agreements. HERERE-
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following

undrawn borrowing facilities:

Floating rate — expiring beyond one year

During the year, the Group obtained additional bank loan amounting to
HK$30,000,000 (2011: HK$638,703,000) which are repayable within
one year. HK$435,000,000 (2011: HK$405,000,000) of the loans
have been classified as current liabilities as the loan contains repayable
on demand clause. Bank deposits of approximately HK$15,043,000
(2011: HK$14,933,000) and hotel properties of approximately
HK$1,425,382,000 (2011: HK$1,322,046,000) were pledged as

securities for these bank borrowings as at 31 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, included in other borrowings were
balances of approximately HK$8,148,000 (2011: HK$8,148,000)
with a company which has a common substantial shareholder with
the Company. Also included in other borrowings were balance of
HK$250,000,000 (2011: Nil) with a company which is a strategic

business partner of the Company.

BRI — 10— 4 2 5

REFHERE AEBZ KRB BEER
BT

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB——F —E——F
FTHERT FHET
57,825 57,881

FR - AEEDBHEINETER
7% #130,000,0008 0 (=& — —F:
638,703,000/ 7T) - N —F A EE - 25
B+ 435,000,000 7T (ZF——%F:
405,000,0007% 7T ) A & A & Z K& FK IR
NS EARBHEEBE R_S—=F
+ZA=+—8"#15,043,000% 7t (=
T —— 14 :14,933,000/5 L) Z SRITE K
K #91,425,382,000/8 7T (=T — — ¢
1,322,046,000 7T) 2 BEMEE T
W ERZSRITEEZER-

%

—T-—H+-A=+—8 HtiEE
BEE-—FKEARNARFEEERATERE
AR 2 EEERHI8,148,0008 L (ZF——
F : 8,148,000/ 7T ) » A & & 5 B 45 B2
—RAAREIREEFREZ AR E
250,000,000/ 7T (= ——4F : &) -
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The movement of the liability component of the convertible loan notes

(“Notes”) for the year ended 31 December 2011 was set out below:

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year RF ] Z BREE
Interest charge (Note 10) MEFZ (M5E10)
Interest paid BAFLE
Redeemed during the year FAED

Carrying amount at the end of the year RERZEEE
The remaining Notes were fully redeemed at HK$341,880,000 on 7
June 2011 which was at 110% of the principal amount according to

redemption plan of the Notes.

The amounts are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group entered into an
interest rate swap with a bank which is not under hedge accounting.

The major terms of the interest rate swap are as follows:

Notional amount Commencement date

BRTH Fe B RN

HK$100,000,000 25 March 2011

100,000,000 7T —E——&E=A=-+HH =—ZE—

+=—RA=-+%H

The gain on fair value changes of the interest rate swap was
approximately HK$128,000 (2011: a loss of HK$2,858,000) and was
credited directly to profit or loss during the year ended 2012.

Maturity date

25 December 2014

ABRBRER((EE])2AEBIRER
—E——F+ A=t HILFEZ &S
E |

2011
HK$'000
—E——F
FET
330,842
11,791

(753)
(341,880)

BIRBEER=_F——F A ALAN
REFRBEBEEFBANEE2110%6
341,880,000/ 7T &= #UE M -

%2 ERBT BB BREFER KRR

DHF

iy
o

—#+t-_A=t—HItF
JE - REBE—FERITRI L — B I A S
EP@E Jﬁ@ZﬂiTﬁﬁﬂﬁZﬂ%ﬁEﬁZi

Swaps
=5
From 1.765% to
3 months HIBOR
H1.765FE % =& 7
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M2 NP EEEE Y EE49128,000
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The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised and UTARAFERBAFEEERZEE
movement thereon during the current and prior years: BERIBEE UNREE2E

Accelerated

tax Fair value of
depreciation Revaluation properties
on hotel  of investment on business
properties properties combination Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RER
BIEYMEZ Bt EAHRYEZ
IR IEFE REWE ATEE MEt
FHIT FHIT FHIT FHIT
At 1 January 2011 R-®E——fF—F—AH 171,585 - 1,194 172,779
Currency realignment gk 8,339 - - 8,339
Credit to the profit or loss A 1EzEEF A (3,260) = = (3,260)
At 31 December 2011 R-T——F
+—RA=+—H 176,664 — 1,194 177,858
Currency realignment Bl - = = =
Credit to the profit or loss A8z F A (HiFE13)
(note 13) (8,104) 4,000 - (4,104)
At 31 December 2012 RZT—=F
+—RA=+—H 168,560 4,000 1,194 173,754
As at 31 December 2012, the Group has unused tax losses subject to RZE—=—F+ZA=+—H X%
the agreement of tax authorities of approximately HK$750,656,000 ZAREBRAMGSEE (BEHEREARE)
(2011: HK$688,753,000) available for offset against future profits. No %) /750,656,000 0 (—Z T — —F:
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of these tax losses 688,753,000/ 7T ) * AI A {E K 85 K 2K i
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Pursuant to the Ao R RBETRET B 18 2 )% F HOR - #iE
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the unutilised tax losses of BRZENEEERERREREEE-
approximately HK$65,926,000 (2011: HK$55,276,000) can be carried RIER BB RRERERRA REBHB
forward for a period of five years up to 2017. The losses arising from 518 4765,926,000 7T (=& — — 4 :
overseas subsidiaries are insignificant, which will expire after a specific 55,276,000 L) Al A AR FEE
period of time. Other unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward T—tFFINIBARIEEBBRETE
indefinitely. HEZ BB BB NEKX - M RE

RZBIEE R R A -
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Number of
shares Amount
HK$'000
KRHBEE ot}
FHT
Authorised EIE
Shares of HK$0.01 each at N_E——F—H—H T ——%F
1 January 2011, 31 December 2011 +-A=+—BER=-_ZE——%F
and 31 December 2012 +=—A=+—BEREEC.01ET
pd %) 150,000,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid ERITRAR
Shares of HK$0.01 each N—_E——F—HF—H - ZF——F
at 1 January 2011, +ZA=+—BRkR=ZZE—=F
31 December 2011 and +ZA=+—HBERAEBE.01ET
31 December 2012 ZR&1D 657,675,872 6,577

The Company had a share option scheme (the “Scheme”), which was
approved and adopted by shareholders of the Company on 3 May
2002, enabling the directors to grant options to employees, executives
or officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries (including executive
and non-executive directors of the Company or any of its subsidiaries)
and any suppliers, consultants, agents or advisers who will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries as incentives
and rewards for their contribution to the Company or such subsidiaries.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme, when aggregated with any shares subject
to any other schemes, shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company on the date of approval and adoption of the Scheme
(the “General Limit”). The Company had refreshed the General Limit
so that the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company would be increased to 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of approval of the General Limit as “refreshed”. The
refreshment of the General Limit was approved by the shareholders of
the Company in the annual general meeting held on 27 May 2005, 19
May 2006, 23 May 2008 and 29 May 2009. The Scheme expired on 3
May 2012.

H
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NEIREBE RGN ESE LT RAR
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M A RIATYEZ BBk - IRARZET B 8 3%
2 AR FT S R 2 Bx f - BRAE (AT E M5t
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All outstanding share options were lapsed in prior years and there were

no share options granted during 2011 and 2012.

The special reserve represents (i) the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of
the shares of the Company issued for the acquisition under the group
reorganisation in September 1997; and (ii) reduction of share capital

took place during the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2008.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in notes 32 and 34 (net of cash and cash
equivalents) and equity attributable to owners of the Company,

comprising issued share capital, accumulated losses and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-
annually basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt

or the redemption of existing debt.

RBEFE  FTERARTE 2 BRESS
RECMR-F-——FR T _FURE
=TT B AR AE -

FhlEmEOE - NN EFNAAETER
BEARAEBHNEARROEESRRK
BMBTARABRMEEIHAIEZR &
(IMBE_ZZERNFR_ZZNF+_H
=t — B EFEETZBRAHR

AEBZEAEEE B BERGEER
BEHREFE BRASE BRI
BREZB TARRGERALORH A
SEEBRIREEFIER-

AEBZEARBEREBERFE(RE
BE (R E32R34FMEE)  NHRIE S
KRS EEER) RARRES AEILE
o (BEDEITRA R BB RE M
) o

ARREEBXFRIEARB BRI Z
— MO REEEBEARARRERERH
MimER AEEERBRERS &
TE G BERD  BITHEBRED
RAEBEBEH N HEBERRBIELT
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Financial assets SRMEE
FVTPL ERBRIEAFEENE

—REREEZRE

— Investments held for trading

Loans and receivables (including cash ~ EFREKRER (BEFERER

and cash equivalents) ReFMEER)
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESmEE
Financial liabilities SEAs
Amortised cost IR A
Derivative financial instrument PTESRTE

The Group's major financial instruments include amount due
from an investee, available-for-sale investments, amount due from
an associate, trade and other receivables, investments held for
trading, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, loan from a related company, derivative
financial instrument, borrowings and amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk,
cash flow, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

There has been no significant change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the

risk.

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000

= —E——%
TERT TAEIT
290 15,682
443,268 468,786
63,877 120,136
965,530 792,512
2,730 2,858

AEEZITEZSRMTABRERENR—
RPIRERAIFA  AIHEERE
FEW —ZKEp 2 AR FIA - B 5 R EA
YR FHIEEEZRE 2 HEM
RITEFR RITEHRIRE BHK
Hip AR —HKBERRER
TEERIA EERENKEAR
R RFR - I E SR T A 25
BERBRAMERE HESHMTA
ZHEBERBREEm SRR (BEEA
B-HERE MEEREEMMER
Rk FERREARBESRR-
AR % B\ 2 BRER B an s » B3R
BaEEELERLERR AR
e I N B RO R EUE B 2 5

AEE HIBRBNERET R
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Market risk

()

(ii)

Currency risk

The Group does not have significant foreign currency sales
and purchases, therefore exposure to foreign currency risk is

minimal.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances, loan from a related company and
borrowings (see notes 27, 30 and 32 for details of these
balances). The Group also has fixed interest rate financial
liabilities which exposed the Group to fair value interest rate
risk. It is the Group's policy to keep its bank balances and
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the

fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Dollar Prime
Rate, HIBOR and PBOC Benchmark Deposit rate arising from
the Group’s Hong Kong Dollar and Renminbi denominated

borrowings.

1755 /B

()

(ir)
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Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Cash flow interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of each of the reporting period. For
variable-rate loan from a related company and borrowings,
the analysis is prepared assuming the amounts of liabilities
outstanding at the end of each of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2011: 50
basis points) increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. No sensitivity is presented
for the bank balances as the bank balances are short-term in

nature and the impact is insignificant.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2011: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2012 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$3,832,000 (2011: by HK$2,978,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its

variable-rate loans.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has increased during
the current year mainly due to the increase in variable rate

debt instruments.

1755 a5 (4%)
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Market risk (Continued)

(iir)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investments in equity securities and derivative financial
instrument. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks. In
addition, the Group has appointed a special team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group's other price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity instruments quoted on the Stock

Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis for other price risks is presented as the

effect is considered insignificant.
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Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2012 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at each of the reporting period end to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances exposed to is
considered minimal as such amounts are placed with banks with

good credit ratings.

Other than concentration of credit risk on 49% (2011: 27%) of
the liquid funds which are deposited with a bank with high credit
rating and amount due from an associate which mainly operates
in the PRC, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk other than the amount due from an

associate.

15 B/ AR

W FHREBITN T ——F+=
A=+—BEBEBECERESRE
EZEE AREEMAEZ&S(E
ERRREEMBRRBRKRMIIZ
FEEZRMEE-

RREEERR AEEZEERER
Zk—/E AREERFEERE F
Bt ETHMERER - RER
ERIBRAE S WD B HEE - 1
S REBENMEHZEREERE 2
REERE Z B - IARERE
FNREU O & BRER BT RO (BB IE
HUME  ARAEEFRR/EAEEZ
EERERE R -

R ER 1T 1 AR S R 1T 4 BR 1T U R
BRIFEERRZRIT ELZER
B EERBRBAR BIRE-

REERBREFREIR—REE=
EEFBRZRITIERBES49% (=
T——F:27%) REK—KBE D
AI(EEERPELE)REIN A
£ B bR B U — R B A R FIE SN
EmHMBRERZEERRB -



For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% =% — =41 =H=—+—HILFK&

Liquidity risk

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity and going concern of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) in view of the fact that
the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$180,604,000 as at 31 December 2012 and
recorded recurring losses of approximately HK$ 149,045,000 for
the year then ended. The directors of the Company are satisfied
that the Group will have sufficient financial resources to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due for the foreseeable future,
after taking into consideration that (i) the Group has obtained
additional banking facilities of HK$650,000,000 in October 2012
to refinance its short-term bank borrowings due January 2013
amounting to HK$435,000,000 with maturity dates from 2014
through 2017; and (ii) the Group has other assets available to
pledge for obtaining further banking facilities. Although the
new HK$650,000,000 banking facilities contain a repayable on
demand clause which the bank may demand repayment at any
time, the directors of the Company believe that the Company will
only be demanded to repay according to the scheduled repayment
dates.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity, in the management of liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
The management monitors the utilisation of bank and other
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates.

B B B

ERBURE VSRR  ERAEE
W-E——F+-HA=+—8zR
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Liquidity risk (Continued) B E 2 ()
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the TREBHERASHEESTRE - WE

MERERFBME  RIFRERTD

extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted

amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting

BRE

r\%EEETZ*‘J‘Y‘D =

period.
Weighted On demand Total Carrying
average or less than 1-2 2-5  undiscounted amount
interest rate 1year years years cash flows 31 December
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR
i RERS —-£Z MEE ReRE +-A=1+-A
FHH=E —-FR ME i3 ag ZIREE
% TAT TET TET TET FHT
2012 g%
Non-derivative financial liabilities FITESRARE
Trade and other payables B2 REMERNER - 30,262 - - 30,262 30,262
Borrowings - variable rate HE-Z8 2.70 470,033 219,244 259,275 948,552 917,963
Borrowings - fixed rate HE-E& 10.00 8,963 - - 8,963 8,148
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAT KT A B SRR
shareholders of subsidiaries R KA = 9,157 = = 9,157 9,157
518,415 219,244 259,275 996,934 965,530
Derivative financial liability fESHARE 4.00 1372 1,480 - 2,852 2,730
2011 —g-—-F
Non-derivative financial liabilities FITESRARE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERRR - 61,843 - - 61,843 61,843
Loan from a related company —RBENEER 7.00 15,589 = = 15,589 14,569
Amount due to a related company EBN—REEDFFE - 100 - - 100 100
Borrowings - variable rate BE-Z8 2.69 434,116 20,374 210,192 714,682 698,695
Borrowings - fixed rate BE-TE8 10.00 8,963 = = 8,963 8,148
Amounts due to non-controlling FANLI NG U
shareholders of subsidiaries B = 9,157 - - 9,157 9,157
579,768 20,374 210,192 810,334 792,512
Derivative financial liability TESHEE 6.66 986 1,257 805 3,048 2,808
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Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of

interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time band in the
above maturity analysis. For the year ended 31 December
2012, the carrying amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$435,000,000 (2011: HK$405,000,000). Such bank loans
would be repaid within one year (2011: two years) after the end
of the corresponding reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At
that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will

amount to HK$444,353,000 (2011: HK$408,713,000).

B E S ()

fid i F By A R BB F RN E 2 M4
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The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are

determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;

3 the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on

discounted cash flow analysis; and

e the fair value of derivative financial instrument is determined
by discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield

curve of interest rate.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair

value is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical

assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as

prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).
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TR B BB AR UL R A T g &
L EHR & (#)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position (Continued)

31 December 2012
—E2--f+=H=+-—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B et 1 B=R A%
FET FET FET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL EBEZHRAFEEE
ZERMEE
Listed securities FmEH 290 - - 290
31 December 2012
—E-—-f+=-H=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
% e B=# &t
FHET FET FHET FET
Financial liabilities at ERBEREAVEEFE
FVTPL ZEemaRE
Derivative financial liability ~ #T4 & B EE - 2,730 - 2,730
31 December 2011
—3——£t-A=1-8
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F—R F_H F=% 8%
FHIT FHT T T
Financial assets at FVTPL ~ZEBEZE AT EEE
ZERMEE
Investment held for trading ~#H{EEE 2% &
Equity securities in unlisted ~ FEEMIRER S 2
investment fund IR 7 25 = 15,468 = 15,468
Listed securities @S 214 = = 214
31 December 2011
—3 —£t-A=t-8
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EF—H FHK F=1 A5
FHIT FHT FET F&T
Financial assets at FVTPL ZEBREZHRAFEEE
ZERMEE
Derivative financial liability ~ #T4 £ B & & = 2,858 = 2,858

RZBE—ZFRZT—F F—HK
measurements in 2012 and 2011. HE-_KAFEEFE 2 EALEE
TR o

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 fair value
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On 4 December 2012, the Group entered into an agreement with
an independent third party for the sale of its entire interest in Square
Inn Budget Hotels Management, Inc. (“Square Inn Management”),
a 79.82% owned subsidiary of the Group which is inactive, at a
consideration of HK$10,000. The transaction was completed in the
same month, resulting in the recognition of a gain of approximately

HK$2,216,000 in profit or loss.

On 25 October 2010, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent third party and the agreement entitled the counterparty
to purchase one out of two shares of Sinomatrix, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group principally engaged in investment holding,
at a consideration of US$2,200,000 (approximately equivalent to
HK$17,050,000). The transaction was completed in June 2011 and
the Group has retained a 50% interest in Sinomatrix. Accordingly,
the Sinomatrix Group ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company and
Sinomatrix became a jointly controlled entity of the Company from that

day.

In December 2010, the Group entered into an agreement for the sale
of its entire interest in EQ)I| FEIHEEEEREBRDE ("EHIITH
[E"), a 50.5% owned subsidiary of the Group principally engaged in
hotel operation, at a consideration of RMB3,000,000 (approximately
equivalent to HK$3,519,000). The transaction was completed in
January 2011 and resulted in the recognition of a loss of approximately

HK$395,000 in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2011.

RZZE——F+-AWHB AEEHE—
BRUE=ZFALHE BEAREER
Square Inn Budget Hotels Management,
Inc. ([Square Inn Management | » 7 6= [&]
HH79.82% kR MBAR RETESL
%)z 2EHER  R1E/310,0008 7T ° %18
ZHERE AT BRI EEER R
492,216,000/ 7T ©

R-_TE—TF+A-+HA AEEE
—EBBUE=FF M ZnEE T
ZEHFAREMNEEREE 2 2 EWE
AR]SinomatrixM R A E R —R - R(E
#32,200,00037T (#8F1%317,050,00078
TL) cHERIN T ——F XA
i 2 £2 B (R B 72 Sinomatrix.Z 50 % £ 5
Lt - Sinomatrix$E B A B RN A &) 2 T8
AT] i Sinomatrix B #% B AR A FLZ 3%

[R42 I B 28 -

REZZT—ZTF+=A NEBEFZ— 71
# HEAREERHEEAS0.5%Ee 2 M
BARMIFEEEBEEERBRAA
(T FE]  BEFEXBAKEEE) 2
2 E R - RERARY3,000,0007T (48
EH#%93,519,00087T) c ZERXFHN T
——F AR BEREE—_ZT——F
+t A=+ —BILEEEBFEREEN
395,000/ 7T
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On 25 April 2011, the Group entered into an agreement for the sale
of its 100% interest in Wise Mark International Investment Inc. (“Wise
Mark"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group principally engaged
in hotel operation, to an independent third party, at a consideration
of HK$3,000,000. The transaction was completed in April 2011 and
resulted in the recognition of a loss of approximately HK$154,000 in

profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2011.

On 22 August 2011, the Group entered into an agreement for the
sale of its entire interest in Sky Victory, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group principally engaged in hotel operation, at a consideration
of RMB6,000,000 (approximately equivalent to HK$7,200,000). The
transaction was completed in September 2011 and resulted in the
recognition of a gain of approximately HK$56,000 in profit of loss for

the year ended 31 December 2011.

On 26 September 2011, the Group entered into an agreement for the
sale of its entire interest in Gold Richly Limited (“Gold Richly”), a 100%
owned subsidiary of the Group principally engaged in property holding,
at a consideration of RMB45,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
HK$55,102,000). The transaction was completed in October 2011 and
resulted in the recognition of a gain of approximately HK$9,980,000 in

profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2011.

R-ZE——SWA-+HB KNEEFL
—pnE —BBYE=FHEAER
REENE A RRBEEERRERRAR
[EBERIRR | HEBEBALERE) 2
100% & #= + X & /3,000,000 7T © 218
RHGR_T——FEMARK BBREE
T+ A=t BRILFEEER
TR 18 4154,000/8 7T

—~

anp>

R-ZE——FNA-+=-H AEEZ]L
— O HEAEERE2EHE AR
Sky Victory (HXZEBALEEHBIE) 2
2 E R - R ERAR6,000,0007T (48
E£H#97,200,00087T) < ZERXHN T
——FNATRK BEREE—T——F
+Z A=+ —BIEFEEBFERRELD
56,0007 TT. °

Tg’
\

T——FhNA=ZF+~B KNEEFT
Vi HEAREREEAF100%
En v HBRAREEMNARAR (&
SN HEFEXBRFAVE) 22
Ez R {E A ARKR45,000,0007T (FH55
455,102,000 7T ) * ZBRFH N ZZF
——F+ARK ERREBE_T——F
+ A=+ —BItFEEBEERRELD
9,980,000 JT °

b

=
B

il
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The net assets of the subsidiaries at the respective dates of disposal ZEMBARINSBEHERMzEEFE
were as follows: LU
2012 2011
—E--f —2——F
Square Inn Sinomatrix
Management Groupat  PEJllFEat  WiseMarkat  SkyVictoryat — Gold Richly at
at4.12.2012 25.6.2011 31.1.2011 30.4.2011 22.8.2011 26.9.2011 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Square Inn Sinomatrix
Management £ m)ll7E LA B Sky Victory Ea=Yil =

R-B-—F HZZ——F RZF——4 RIZ——F HNZZ——% RZZ——
+=-AmMA A~A=+HA —-A=1+-H MA=+B NA=-+=H AhA-tA~H
TET FAT TR TAT FAT TAL FHL

Property, plant and equipment M BBRIE - - - 1,378 1,006 = 2,384
Investment properties RENE - - - = = 45,253 45,253
Intangible assets EVEE - - - 1,478 5,853 - 7,331
Available-for-sale investment AEHERE - 48,715 = = = = 48,715
Inventories F& - - 45 - 115 76 236
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HAth AR X - - 700 68 568 159 1,495
Other assets HiEE - - - 343 265 - 608
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRAS - - 301 - 109 23 433
Assets classified as held for sale BARELHEZAE - - 4,903 - - - 4,903
Trade and other payables B 5 REMER R (1,711 - (1,961) (113) (728) (931) (3,733)
Tax liabilities REARE (1,230) - (74) - (44) (1,514) (1,632)
Net (liabilities) assets disposed of L& (BB EE (2,941) 48,715 3914 3,154 7,144 43,066 105,993
Non-controlling interests FEE RS 735 (14,615) = = = = (14,615)
Gain on disposal (Note) HE 2 Was () 2,216 = (395) (154) 56 9,980 9,487
Total consideration BaRE 10 34,100 3,519 3,000 7,200 53,046 100,865
Satisfied by: XA
Other receivables H it U BR 3R 10 - - - - - -
Deposit received in prior year BFERRzZS - - 2,478 - - - 2,478
Cash Re - 17,050 1,041 3,000 7,200 55,102 83,393
Fair value of remaining 50% equity REBERR—RERE
interest retained as interestin a jointly BT822 #2528 N50%
controlled entity AER 2 AT ERE - 17,050 = = = = 17,050
Expenses incurred for the disposal HEMEE LAY - - - = = (2,056) (2,056)
10 34,100 3,519 3,000 7,200 53,046 100,865
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEMEEZRAERA
FE
Cash Be - 17,050 1,041 3,000 7,200 55,102 83,393
Bank balances and cash disposed of Tt & 2 81T
HEHRRAS - - (301) - (109) (23) (433)
Expenses incurred for the disposal HEMELZAY - - = = = (2,056) (2,056)
- 17,050 740 3,000 7,091 53,023 80,904
Note: For the year ended 31 December 2011, included in loss on disposal MizZ: B2—F——F+=-_A=+—H1t
were translation reserve of approximately HK$ 1,105,000 (2012: Nil) FE - HEZEBRBEN-_Z——F
released upon disposal of subsidiaries in 2011. o Y 1 B R AR bR 2 BB L R A
1,105,000 70 (=T —Z4F : &) o
The contribution of these subsidiaries to the results of the Group during IERBARINAFERBEFEH RS

the current and prior years was insignificant. BXE 2RI TEKXNC
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Save as otherwise disclosed, at 31 December 2012, the Group's credit
facilities were secured by the Group's assets as follows:

Hotel properties and hotel property under — SEE¥ % R EEHEE M E
construction
Bank balances RITAE R

Certain bank borrowings are secured by fixed charges over the entire
issued capital of the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
floating charge over all the revenue of a hotel property of the Group
and fixed charge over all the assets of the same hotel.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which
fall due as follows:

KRERTREEN R=T——F+_A4
=t—H AEEZEERENAREERT

5| E E (AR

1,425,382
15,043

1,440,425

ETRITEEUART

1,322,046
14,933

1,336,979

2EMBAF 2

BEBTRAZEERL AEE—REE

MEMBRAZFEH

TRR—BERE

BE < B E D FHE I -

RZE——F+-_A=+—0 XEER

BB AREEEHE

MZRKRERE

MR AR I FAE 2 BRI T

2012
HK$°000
-
FET
Hotel properties gy ES
Within one year —F R 58,974
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FZERTF(RREEEME) 53,708
Over five years hF% 5,102
117,784
Other land and buildings Hit tih R EF
Within one year —FR" 330
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEEZERF(REEBEMFE) 83
413
Operating lease payments for other land and building represent rentals Hip Lt MEF 2 K&

payable by the Group for certain of its office properties.

For hotel properties in the PRC, leases are negotiated for an average
term of three to nine years.

For hotel properties in Hong Kong, leases are negotiated for an average
term of two to five years.

2011
HK$'000
—F %
TR

74,762
170,896
55,763

301,421

526

526

HAONREASE

REETHAEMEMENZESE -

TEBEMERANBERBFH=2A

o

BRELEENEROBEARFHORERD

o
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Property rental income earned during the year was approximately FRUE 2 Y2 AL /23,475,000
HK$23,475,000 (2011: HK$20,952,000). BT (ZZ——%:20,952,000&7T) °
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with RERAL R NEEBRBFITVZE
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments under non- B RERBBABRBETAIRE 2 CEHOT
cancellable operating leases for premises within the hotel properties for HFHHEEBD B AMEASRER—EMFLZ
an average term of 2 to 6 years in the PRC and for average term of 1 to FREREBBEMERNZ WEZARKE
2 years in Hong Kong: iEFOR NP
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EB——F —E——4F
FET FHET
Within one year —&FRN 8,314 22,323
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_FEFRF (BREEEMSE) 28,684 59,378
Over five years hF®E 3,438 9,747
40,436 91,448
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
- —T——F
FHET FHT
Contracted for but not provided in the E R T EEITNERRERE
consolidated financial statements in BT 75 dh R A
respect of:
Capital expenditure of investment property R EWEZ EAR S - 20,065
Capital injection in an associate AE R ERA] 11,115 11,115
Purchase of property, plant and equipment — B& B #)3 « #28 K& 15 160 31,752

11,275 62,932
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The Group has retirement schemes covering a substantial portion
of its employees in Hong Kong. The principal schemes are defined
contribution schemes. The assets of these schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of independent

trustees.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group joined a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for all its new employees in
Hong Kong employed therefrom or existing employees wishing to join
the MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its
employees are required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at
5% of relevant payroll cost. Subject to a cap to monthly relevant income
of HK$25,000 since 1 June 2012 (previously HK$20,000), which
contribution is matched by employees. The only obligation of the Group
in respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under

the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified

contributions.

The amounts charged to profit or loss represent contributions paid or
payable to the schemes by the Group of approximately HK$12,878,000
(2011: HK$11,500,000).

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions (2011: Nil), which arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefit schemes and which are available to reduce the

contributions payable in future year.

AEBRRBIBEERERERAKESH
2o X EHBATHEERTE -REHE
REERAEEZEESH UESHA
18 YRBILEFEAZES-

H-ZTEF+ A B - AEERMA
BRZBEREFEZBEREXEELMAE
HERESEE ([RESHEZRA
BE2MBESTE - RESFERER

M A TE E 5 ENE G R Bl RS S T
HEERAM -wBeHEzEERAE
ErEESH UESAFXFE THBE
SAsFEARES R TE 2 ETEI 2 RA
BERHEESANBE ST EEL B
Bsn st AT ——FA—H#:
& AW A £BR A25,000% 7T (A A&
20,0007 7T) * 1B B IMEMEH B - &
EEFAES B —ER BETRE
RIERFTEELARTE 2 K-

AEETEHBARZEES AT EBMA
EEZBERKEANEKE  ZFHE

FIZAIZE B H A T 8 2 L RR KRR
AR REANRERES - ARERZ
BANENEIME—ER 2 REMRIEE
TEHIRTE 2 K

RIBEPINZ 2 KB BAEEB T E
T F 518 2 £ 504912,878,000/8 T (=&
——%:11,500,000/ 7T ) °

REHRPERE  WERAESRDRKE
At 81 2 A A HANIRUR SRR R R A (5K
ZRBER(ZF——F ) o
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(a)

(b)

(0)

(d)

-4 ZH =+ —HIEFEE

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group had transactions with

related parties as follows:

Nature of transactions Name of related company

XHHHE HEARERE

Loan interests paid and payable by the ITC Management
Group
AEBE RN RERNZEHRFE ITC Management

Note: The holding company of ITC Management has significant
influence over the Company. In the opinion of the directors,
the loan interests paid and payable by the Group to ITC
Management are de minimis transactions exempted from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to rule 14A.31(2)(c) of the
Listing Rules.

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group
received loan from a related company which was repaid in full
during the year. Details of their relationships and the terms of the

loans are set out in note 30.

The Group maintained current accounts with an associate and
related companies. Their balances as at 31 December 2012 and

2011 are set out in notes 18 and 31.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management members was set out in

note 12.

B E P BERREMBOAEES
SN RN AEBEEEALETY
RHMIT

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2--F —T——%
T#&T TRT
101 753

B3 : ITC ManagementZ ¥ f% 2 &)
HARRBEAVEN -EF
RAE RNEBENMNRERMITC

I\/IanagementZ =S RA BT
PREER 5 - %ﬁ%L#J:Fﬁ%E Al
F14A31R)NOBz R NER
éﬁ-ﬁlﬂx%ﬁt/EZﬁE ®
REBEE-ZF-——_FR-F——F+=
A=+ LEFE AEEBR—K
ERREREN BEERERE
WESEE -2 Rl 2R RER

AEER-REEATREREE
RRAERERP HRN-_ZE——FK
—E——F+-A=t+—Az&#%
A E18 %31 »

FEEEAB ZFH

TZEEASHMENHFEI2 -
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31.12.2012 31.12.2011
HK$000 HK$000
—E-CfF —T——%F
+=A=+-B +-A=t—§
FExT T
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERE Y 580 2,070
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries AR NEIE 1,646,987 1,462,661
1,647,567 1,464,731
Current assets MBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W B B R BRI 2,844 2,846
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H i FE AR X 10,095 1,850
Bank balances and cash RITEBR RIS 100,833 202,781
113,772 207,477
Current liabilities mBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H b FET BR K 9,014 8,374
Amount due to a related company JET —XBBE R RFKIE - 100
Borrowings — amount due within one year {88 ——F N E|HiFIE 18,148 68,140
27,162 76,614
Net current assets mENE ERE 86,610 130,863
Total assets less current liabilities BERLBERTBDEE 1,734,177 1,595,594
Non-current liability EmEBE
Borrowings — amount due after one year BE——F& I KA 250,000 =
Net assets BEFE 1,484,177 1,595,594
Capital and reserves BAR KRG
Share capital (N 6,577 6,577
Share premium W19 5 B 1,248,048 1,248,048
Special reserve Rl 780,549 780,549
Accumulated losses 2t EE (550,997) (439,580)

Total equity L ey e 1,484,177 1,595,594
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Share Share Special Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&S RGEE H5 Bl R ESay B
FHT FHT FHET FAET FHTT
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%F
—HA—H 6,577 1,248,048 780,549 (225,939) 1,809,235
Loss for the year REE &S - - - (213,641)  (213,641)
At 31 December 2011 R=—T——F
+=—A=+—8 6,577 1,248,048 780,549 (439,580) 1,595,594
Loss for the year RNEEZEE - - - (M1,417)  (111,417)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT——%F
+=-—A=+—H 6,577 1,248,048 780,549 (550,997) 1,484,177
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 UTRER-E——FR-_ZT—F+—-A4

and 2011 are as follows:

=t BARRBZEIEMBRRFIE:

Place of Issued and paid up Effective interest in issued
incorporation/ share capital/ share capital/ registered Principal activities and
Name of company registration registered capital capital held by the Group place of operation
2012 2011
% %
BERTRERE AEERECRT
AREB HRARL R RE/EMES RE/EMES 2 BRER TEEBREELY
—%--fF =
% %
Allied Glory Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 725 68.3 Investment holding
("Allied Glory") in the PRC
BREEFRAR ([AK]) & 287 R AR
Apex Quality Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$5,548,172 88.2 83.1 Investment holding
Apex Quality Group Limited ERERRES 5,548,172 T REER
Asia Times Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 100 100 Investment holding
Asia Times Limited EEARRES 1003 7T REER



Name of company

DEEE

Benchmark Pacific Limited

Benchmark Pacific Limited

DS Eastin Limited

BBRTREBRAR

Eagle Spirit Holdings Limited

Eagle Spirit Holdings Limited

Fortress State International

Limited

RRERERAR

HMH China Investments Limited

HMH China Investments Limited

Lucky Million Investments Limited

Lucky Million Investments Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% =%

Place of
incorporation/
registration

EMAIL BB

British Virgin Islands

RRABRES

Hong Kong

BE

British Virgin Islands

REABARES

Hong Kong

BB

Bermuda

BREZ

British Virgin Islands

REABARES

Issued and paid up
share capital/
registered capital

ERTRAR
BAE/ERES

US$1

(E

HK$20

2087

US$1

(E

HK$1

18T

CAD$1,152,913

1,152,91370%

US$1

(E

Effective interest in issued
share capital/ registered
capital held by the Group

2012 2011
% %
FEBBEERG
LEVETE et LT
-g-=¢  F-—%
% %
100 100
100 100
88.2 83.1
88.2 83.1
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
72.5 683
72.5 683
88.2 83.1
88.2 83.1

- EF ZH =+ —HIEFEE

Principal activities and
place of operation

TREBREXME

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BEEREER

Investment holding
in the PRC
RERE R

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BBREER

Hotel holding
in Hong Kong
REBREBE

Investment holding
in the PRC
RERE R

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BBREER
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Name of company

DEEH

Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel

Co., Ltd.

BBLKEAEEARAT

Makerston Limited

Makerston Limited

Rosedale Group Management

Limited

HEEEERERLA

Rosedale Hotel Beijing Co., Ltd.

ERABBEERAERT

Rosedale Hotel Group Limited

HEEESBEERRA

Rosedale Hotel Guangzhou Co.,

Ltd. (“Rosedale Guangzhou")

BEMREEEERAR

(TEM3E])

Rosedale Hotel Kowloon Limited

NERBBEERAF

Place of
incorporation/
registration

ML BB

PRC*

g

British Virgin Islands

REABARES

Hong Kong

BB

PRC###

EF m

British Virgin Islands

RRABARES

PRC*

;P@##

Hong Kong

EB

-4 ZH =+ —HIEFEE

Issued and paid up
share capital/
registered capital

ERTRAR
BAE/ERER

RMB 145,000,000

AR¥%
145,000,0007C

US$1

(E

HK$2

2B

US$17,200,000

17,200,000% 7T

US$1

(E

US$11,500,000

11,500,000 7T

HK$1

18T

Effective interest in issued
share capital/ registered
capital held by the Group

2012 2011

% %
FEBBEERG

LEVET et LT

e F-—%

% %

60 60

60 60

88.2 83.1

88.2 83.1

88.2 83.1

88.2 83.1

88.2 83.1

88.2 83.1

88.2 83.1

88.2 83.1

7.7 676

7.7 676

100 100

100 100

Principal activities and
place of operation

TREBREXMH

Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
RHEER L BE

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BBREER

Provision of management

services in Hong Kong

REARHEERE

Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
RHEEE REEBIE

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
BBREER

Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
RHEER REEBE

Hotel operation
in Hong Kong
REBEEEE



Name of company

DEEE

Rosedale Hotel International

Limited

Rosedale Hotel International

Limited

Rosedale Park Limited

Rosedale Park Limited

The Rosedale Luxury

Hotel & Suites Ltd.

HBEX(LE)ARAA

Shenyang Hotel Holdings Limited

EEEERNERAR

Shenyang Limited

Shenyang Limited

Shropshire Property Limited

REMEERAF

Square Inn Hotel Management
Limited
FENEREEERERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% =%

Place of
incorporation/
registration

ML BB

British Virgin Islands

RRABRES

Hong Kong

BB

PRC##%

;T: m

British Virgin Islands

REEBARES

British Virgin Islands

REABARES

British Virgin Islands

REERARES

Macau

R

Issued and paid up
share capital/
registered capital

ERTRAR
BE/ERES

US$1

(ESH

HK$2

BT

US$20,000,000

20,000,000% 7T

Us$100

100%7T

US$1

(E

Ordinary - US$10

Preference -

US$1,000

ERR—10ET

BRfk—

1,000% 7T

MOP100,000

100,0008) %

Effective interest in issued
share capital/ registered
capital held by the Group

2012 2011

% %
FEBBEERG

LEVETE et LT

-g-=&  F-—%

% %

100 100

100 100

88.2 83.1

88.2 83.1

100 100

100 100

838 789

838 789

88.2 83.1

88.2 83.1

100 100

100 100

100 79.8

100 798

- EF ZH=F—HIEFE

Principal activities and
place of operation

TREBREXME

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
BEERELRR

Hotel operation
in Hong Kong
REBLEEE

Property investment
in the PRC
RENERE

Property investment
in the PRC
mENERE

Investment holding
in the PRC
B AR

Investment holding

in the PRC

PEREZR

Budget hotel operation
in Macau

RRMEEEEREE



For the year ended 31 December 2012 ## =%

- H =1+ —HILFEE

Effective interest in issued
share capital/ registered

Principal activities and

Place of Issued and paid up

incorporation/ share capital/

Name of company registration registered capital
BERTRAR

ARER MR, B R/ EMER
Success Billion Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1
Success Billion Limited HEEBRES (E
Time Plaza (Shenyang) Limited PRC* RMB 168,000,000
BRES (BG) ERA HE ARE
168,000,0007C

WHS Marine Services Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000
KERERERAF EE 1,000,000/ 7T

& The subsidiaries are Sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

#  This subsidiary is a Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture. Allied Glory
is entitled to recoup its total investment (including capital and interest)
from the after-tax earnings of Rosedale Guangzhou before any
amounts are distributed. Thereafter, the after-tax earnings of Rosedale
Guangzhou are to be distributed at 80% and 20% to Allied Glory and
other joint venture partner respectively.

##  The subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned entities.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results or assets and liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of

the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

No debt securities have been issued by any of the subsidiaries during the

year.

capital held by the Group place of operation
2012 2011
% %
AEERBECRT
RA/ERES 2 BB ES TEEBREEBE
—B-ZF —T——F%
% %
100 100 Trading of securities
in Hong Kong
100 100 WNEBEERS
771 72.6 Hotel ownership and
operation in the PRC
774 726 ROBEEERELEE
100 100 Ship Building, repairing,
and holdings of leisure
boat in Hong Kong
100 100 REBRERGEMSE

AR F AR

t ZEHRBARTIRIMNRAESERF

o ZMBARA—RPINGIEEE AT
BIMNBE BB ERFBES ﬁ&ﬁ
SKIERT - BB REERIREIR 2 BIRE
(PREESRFEB) 2% EMNKEZ
& B3 18 22 7 8 LA80% K. 20% 2 Lt 5l 75
RDRTEEREMEE BT

i

2B ARTINEBEE R

oup

EERABERMINAEEZHEBA T%$
SR REEREERABEEATE -
ERBMIEMMEA TZ#%Q%%%
BRILE - I EEFES

FABEEAMBERRBETERES



For the year ended 31 December 2012 #% =% — =41 =H=—+—HILFK

The following significant events occurred subsequent to 31 December

2012:

On 28 January 2013, Venture Rainbow Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group, acquired an additional 5% equity interest
or 50 shares in the issued share capital of Business Action, at a cash
consideration of HK$5,800,000 from one of the other shareholders.
Additional shareholder loan of approximately HK$11,115,000 was
made on the same date. Accordingly, the Group's equity interest in

Business Action increased from 45% to 50%.

THEBREFER-_Z——F+_A=+—
BHig3A:

MN-E—=F—F—-+/\B A&EHE2E
Bff /28 /2 &) Venture Rainbow Limited /¢ H

% E {th i% 5 B B Business Action2 21T
AR 7R R 2 B 9IS Yo AR 7S 4 & S S0RR AR 17 -
3 © 845,800,000 7T - [F B {EH BESM
AR E X 4911,115,0005 7T A I - A&
B 7 Business ActionZ I& AN 4 & 45 %1%

£50% °



Continuing operations

Turnover

Loss before taxation

Taxation (expense) credit

Loss for the year from

continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Profit (loss) for the year from

discontinued operations

(Loss) profit for the year

Loss for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total assets

Total liabilities

Equity attributable to
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

RESERY
EXE

BR 75t Al 5 1R
HE () EE

FEREEBIAEE
B

RIEREER
RIEBERBZAER
i (ER)

AER (BR) R

REZERMTIIAL
JE1
ENGIE 2SN
2 Fan

o
i
i

AREHEEA
iy
I o

2012
HK$'000

—E-CfF
TR

429,466

(148,112)
(933)

(149,045)

(149,045)

(143,188)
(5.857)

(149,045)

2012
HK$'000

—E-—F
THERT

3,130,142
1,240,384

1,889,758

1,704,987
184,771

1,889,758

Year ended 31 December

2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000
HE+T-A=t-HLEE
% —F-%%
THT T8
391,023 309,339
(217,886) (290,872)
(1,445) 4,061
(219,331) (286,811)
= 699,724
(219,331) 412,913
(206,643) 468,446
(12,688) (55,533)
(219,331) 412,913

2011
HK$°000

—T——F

TAEL

3,151,655
1,057,409

2,094,246

1,854,959
239,287

2,094,246

As at 31 December
2010
HK$'000

R+=A=+-8
—T-ZF
FET
3,023,269
754,118

2,269,151

2,005,557
263,594

2,269,151

2009
HK$'000

ZEThEF

FTET

257,989

(231,170)
(1,778)

(232,948)

(114,241)

(347,189)

(357,811)
10,622

(347,189)

2009
HK$'000

—TTNE
FHET

3,706,012
1,831,044

1,874,968

1,503,396
371,572

1,874,968

2008
HK$'000

.
FHT

319,090

(416,259)
(7,085)

(423,344)

(409,569)

(832,913)

(688,918)
(143,995)

(832,913)

2008
HK$'000

—2EN\F
TR

4,623,726
2,372,211

2,251,515

1,836,344
415171

2,251,515



Company
AL

Rosedale Hotel

Beijing Co., Ltd.

EFIEBBEREREEAR

Rosedale Hotel

Guangzhou Co., Ltd.

BEINIAREEIE B R 1 7

Luoyang Golden Gulf
Hotel Co., Ltd.

BB SR ABESRAR

Address

3 4k

Rosedale Hotel & Suites,

Beijing

No. 8 Jiang Tai Road West,

Chao Yang District,
Beijing, the PRC

LSRR
PR R
#E R
# & P EE8SR

Rosedale Hotel & Suites,
Guangzhou
No. 348
Jiangnanda Road Central,
Haizhu District,
Guangzhou, the PRC

BN IAREIE 5
FEE M T

B IR E
JLFE K38 34857

Luoyang Golden Gulf Hotel
No. 319 Zhongzhou
Zhong Road
Xigong District
Luoyang City

Henan Province, the PRC

RS A AT

REAREE
AT
71T &

AR AR B 31955

Existing
Use

BREAR

Hotel operation

REBE XD

Hotel operation

R BE XD

Hotel operation

REBE XD

Site
Area

i 8 E TR

18,699.60

sg.m.

18,699.60
FHK

10,838.88

sg.m.

10,838.88
FHk

9,025.51

sg.m.

9,025.51
FHk

Gross
Area

HER

37,173.20

sg.m.

37,173.20
FHK

46,865.83

sg.m.

46,865.83
FHK

21,269.18

sg.m.

21,269.18
FIAK

%
Interest

EEBEAL

88.2%

88.2%

71.7%

71.7%

60.0%

60.0%



Company
AT

Address
it 3k

Time Plaza (Shenyang) Limited  Times Plaza Hotel, Shenyang

KRES O&S)BR AR

Fortress State International

Limited

HAEHBERGRAR

Company
AL

Rosedale Luxury

Hotel & Suites Ltd.

HEEX(LB)ARAR

No. 99 North Station Road,
Shenhe District,

Shenyang City,

Liaoning Province,

the PRC

SR ES B

B
S
LA [

1t ¥ B& 9955

No. 86, Tai Kok Tsui Road,

Tai Kok Tsui,

Kowloon

i3
L
X A H 7E865%

Address

331k

No. 1900 Tianshan Road,
Changning District,
Shanghai, the PRC

Existing
Use

AR

Hotel operation

REBERD

Hotel operation

REBIEZED

Existing Use

REEAR

Vacant

Site Gross %

Area Area Interest
b 42 T 7R BER ERADL
5,335.00 43,000.34 77.1%
sg.m. Sg.m.
5,335.00 43,000.34 77.1%
R AR 757K
845.40 10,300.46 100%
sq.m. sqg.m.
845.40 10,300.46 100%
750K AR
Lease Term
HH

Leasehold with a term expiring

on 15 October 2023

HESE AR -_T-=%
+A+EBE®



i

Rosedale

Rosedale Hotel Holdings Limited
31st Floor, Paul Y. Centre, 51 Hung To Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

HEEEERBR QA
ERNEEDLEE RRECET OIS
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